
 

 
www.waldenacademy.org                                                   Walden Academy Board Meeting Agenda 
   Page 1 of 2 

 Walden Academy, Inc. 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Agenda 

 

Tuesday, September 10, 5:30 pm Regular Meeting 
 

The meeting will be held at the Glenn County Office of Education, 311 South Villa Ave., Willows, CA 95988 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
1. Call to Order and Attendance        

Meeting is called to order by the Board Chair at ______________ 
 
Board Members     Present Absent 
K. Lawler     ______ ______ 
M. Vanderwaal     ______ ______ 
Z. Whitney     ______ ______ 
M. Holzapfel     ______ ______ 
J. John      ______ ______ 
K. Zabell     ______ ______ 
S. Molnar     ______ ______ 

 
 Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 
2. Review & Approval of Agenda  

  
         

3. Public Comments          
 COMMENTS FROM THE FLOOR - At this time any person wishing to speak to any item not on the agenda will 
 be granted three minutes to make a presentation to the Board of Directors. 

COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS – Any person wishing to speak to any item on the agenda will be granted five 
minutes to make a presentation.  
 

  
4. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes: August 13, 2013 and August 22, 2013 
b. Approval of Check Register: August 2013 
c. Field Trips: 

1. Tefs  - Into the Wild with Jack Hanna – Chico State - 11/1/13 
2. Maben/Donahoo- Bishop’s Pumpkin Farm – Wheatland -10/25/13 
3. Provost/Shephard/Zaro – Lizzie Snider Concert – 9/5/13 
4. All Teachers – 10/22/13,2/27/14,3/31-4/3/14,5/13/14 - GCOE Events  
5. All Teachers – Dates Vary.  Walking field trips and jogging. 
6. Zaro – 10/4 to 10/5 –Colusa Sacramento River Overnight 
 

 
5. Administrator/Board Member Reports            

a. Director’s Report  (Benz) 
b. Budget Update (EdTec) 
c. PTGCC Update  
d. Board Member Reports 
 

6. Discussion & Action Items 
a. Facilities Update (Lawler) - Board will receive an update, and discuss progress for approval. 
b. Unaudited Financial Statements 2012-13 (Vanderwaal) - Board will consider for approval. 
c. Enrollment Level for Third Grade (Benz) – Board will consider enrollment level increase by one for third grade, to 

move a current student per teacher recommendation. 
d. Employee Handbook Revisions (Benz) - Board will consider revisions to Employee Handbook for approval. 

1 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



 

 
www.waldenacademy.org                                                   Walden Academy Board Meeting Agenda 
   Page 2 of 2 

e. TB Deferment (Whitney) – Board will consider TB requirement deferment. 
f. Common Core Grant Implementation Plan (Vanderwaal) - Board will review.  

1. Public Hearing  

 LEA’s shall use funding received from this appropriation for instructional materials, professional 
               development, and technology necessary to implement the academic content standards adopted by the 

       State Board pursuant to Sections 60605.8, 60605.10 and 60605.11 of the Education Code. 
 
g. Grand Jury Response (Benz) Board will consider for approval Grand Jury Response. 
 

 
7. Announcements:  Next regular meeting October 8th, GCOE Board Room 

 
 

8. Adjournment 

 

 
THE ORDER OF BUSINESS MAY BE CHANGED WITHOUT NOTICE 
Notice is hereby given that the order of consideration of matters on this agenda may be changed without prior notice. 
 
REASONABLE LIMITATIONS MAY BE PLACED ON PUBLIC TESTIMONY 
The Governing Board’s presiding officer reserves the right to impose reasonable time limits on public testimony to ensure that the agenda is 
completed. 
 
REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION WILL BE PROVIDED FOR ANY INDIVIDUAL WITH A DISABILITY 
Pursuant to the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, any individual with a disability who requires 
reasonable accommodation to attend or participate in this meeting of the Governing Board may request assistance by contacting Walden 
Academy at PO Box 1092, Willows, CA 95988, klawler@waldenacademy.org, as far in advance as possible, but no later than 24 hours before 
the meeting. 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION 
For more information concerning this agenda or for materials relating to this meeting, please contact Walden Academy at PO Box 1092, 
Willows, CA 95988, klawler@waldenacademy.org. 

Vision 
Our vision is to offer a vibrant education that extends beyond the classroom to all Willows students and parents that desire it. 
  
Mission 
The mission of Walden Academy is to provide a learning environment that extends beyond the classroom and textbooks and 
stimulates and nurtures a students’ desire to learn.  Students will be exposed to a learning environment that helps them gain 
the knowledge, skills, perspectives and practices to be responsible citizens.  Natural Resources Education will provide an 

avenue for this development that can engage the students far beyond the classroom. 

2 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



 

 
 
www.waldenacademy.org                                                   Walden Academy Board Meeting Minutes 
   Page 1 of 2 

Walden Academy, Inc. 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 
August 22, 2013 – 5:45 PM 

 
 
1. Call to Order and Attendance  

The meeting was called to order by Board President Lawler at 5:45 PM.   
The flag salute was led by Mrs. Anderson. 
The following Members were present, constituting a quorum of the Board: Kelly Lawler, Mary Holzapfel, Kathy 
Zabell, and Zuheit Whitney 
 

 
2. Review and Approval of Agenda (5:46) 

Motion: Lawler moved to strike item 7a from the agenda. 
Second: Whitney seconded. 
Vote: Unanimous 
 
Motion:  Lawler moved to approve agenda. 
Second:  Holzapfel 
Vote:  Unanimous 
 

3. Public Comments  
None. 

 
4. Board Member Appointment (5:47) 

 
Motion: Lawler moved to approve Steve Molnar as the board member to fill the remainder of Ryan Edson’s term. 
Second: Zabell 
Vote: Unanimous 

 
5. Consent Agenda (5:48) 

a. Provost Field Trip 4th

b. Anderson Field Trip K 9/6Park (Benz) 
 Grade – Orland Farm Days (Benz) 

c. Anderson Field Trip K 9/19 Willows Library (Benz) 
 
Motion: Lawler moved to approve the consent agenda. 
Second: Whitney 
Vote:  Unanimous 

 
6. Administrator/Board Member Reports (5:50) 

a. Director’s Update (Benz) 
Mele Benz gave a brief report. 

b. Board Member Reports 
Lawler, Zabell, and Whitney had brief reports. 

 
 

7. Discussion & Action Items 
a. Employee Handbook Revisions (Benz) – Item stricken from Agenda. 

Motion:  
Second:  
Vote: 

b. Family Handbook Revisions (Benz) (5:52) 
Motion: Lawler moved to approve the Family Handbook. 
Second: Whitney 

3 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



 

 
 
www.waldenacademy.org                                                   Walden Academy Board Meeting Minutes 
   Page 2 of 2 

Discussion:  Need to address homework practices with teachers and update handbook before it comes out. 
Vote:  Unanimously approved. 

c. Volunteer Handbook Revisions (Benz) (5:54) 
Motion: Lawler moved to approve the Volunteer Handbook. 
Second: Whitney 
Vote:   Unanimous 

d. Sibling Addition Approval (Benz) (5:58) 
Motion: Lawler moved to raise the class limit in 3rd

Second:  Whitney 
 grade to 26 under the sibling addition policy. 

Vote:  3-1 motion passes 
 
 
8. Closed Session (6:00) 
a. Section 54957: PUBLIC EMPLOYEMENT: After School Program Staff (2) 
 
9. Report out of Closed Session on Any Action Taken 

Lawler reported that Brenda Barajas has been approved to be hired as part of the after school program staff 
on Mondays and Wednesdays and Landry Otterson has been approved to be hired for Thursdays and Fridays. 
 

10. Announcements:  Next regular meeting September 10, GCOE Board Room at 5:30. 
 

 
11. Adjournment (6:05) 
Motion: Lawler moved to adjourn the meeting. 
Second: Whitney 
Vote: Unanimous 
 
 

 

4 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Print As Check Number Check Date Inv Description (Bill Pmt) Amount
Heather Shepherd 2640 8/1/2013 Reimb: Parking, Toll & Mileage to Travel for Training at Lawrence Hall 397.88
Friesen Computer Company 2641 8/5/2013 Computer Svcs: Shop Repair & Consulting 45.00
Ray Morgan Company Inc 2642 8/5/2013 Acct#WA02; Canon Svc 08/20/13 - 09/19/13 + Overages 216.68
Waste Management 2643 8/5/2013 Acct#338-0015730-0533-5; Svc: August 2013 156.21
PG&E EFT080613 8/6/2013 EFT080613 - Svc 06/15 - 07/16/13 248.58
Vonage EFT081213 8/12/2013 EFT081213 - Svc 08/10 - 09/09/13 141.15
EdTec Inc 2644 8/13/2013 Monthly Svc Fee August 2013 6,424.16
Illuminate Education 2645 8/13/2013 05/24/13 - Full Day of Training 500.00
North State Parent Magazine 2646 8/13/2013 1/6 Page Ad 250.00
Heather Shepherd 2647 8/13/2013 Reimb: Class Supplies 163.24
St Monica Parish-Willows 2648 8/13/2013 Utility Expense 12/13 3,355.68
The Northeast Foundation for Children, Inc. 2649 8/13/2013 Cust#4P89DL; Responsive Classroom Sampler 08/23/13 2,400.00
UC Regents - Lawrence Hall of Science 2650 8/13/2013 Professional Teaching Services 08/21 - 11/08/13 4,800.00
Merrilee Vanderwaal 2651 8/13/2013 4420 (Two Laptops) 1,703.69
Williams Unified School District 2652 8/13/2013 Overpayment In-Liew of Property Tax by Williams Unified 650.31
Willows Hardware, Inc. 2653 8/13/2013 Custodial Supplies 32.27
CoPower 2654 8/19/2013 ID:154020; Health Ins: September 2013 847.48
Pearson Education, Inc. 2655 8/20/2013 Acct#2556642; 12/13 Curriculum 2,084.74
Mele Benz 2656 8/23/2013 Reimb: PE/Recess Equipment, Textbooks & Student Supplies 12,127.33
Anthem Blue Cross 2657 8/26/2013 Grp#498422; Health Ins: September 2013 2,173.00
California Water Service Company 2658 8/26/2013 MeterID#62281667; Sewer/Metered Water - 07/12 - 08/12/13 99.20
Comcast 2659 8/26/2013 Acct#8155600290106163; Telephone Svc due 08/31/13 182.16
Staples Advantage 2660 8/26/2013 Acct#1013250; Office Supplies 157.19
CharterSafe 2661 8/27/2013 Biz & Workers Comp Ins - Septembert 2013 1,899.26
Barbara Jean  Spear 2662 8/27/2013 Rent - Septembert 2013 1,600.00
St Monica Parish-Willows 2663 8/27/2013 Rent - Sept 2013 3,850.00

Walden Academy: August 2013 Check Register

5 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



6 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



7 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



8 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



9 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



10 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



11 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



12 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



13 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



14 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



15 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



16 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



17 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



18 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



19 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



20 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



21 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



22 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



23 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy 

408 Pacific Avenue 

Willows, CA 95988 

(530)361-6480 

 

School Director’s Report – September 2013 

 

The mission of Walden Academy is to provide a learning environment that extends beyond the classroom 

and textbooks and stimulates and nurtures a students' desire to learn. Students are exposed to a learning 

environment that helps them gain the knowledge, skills, perspectives and practices to be responsible 

citizens. Natural Resources Education provides an avenue for this development that can engage the 

students far beyond the classroom. 

 

I. STUDENT ATTENDANCE REPORT: 2013-14 = 99.9% 

 

II. ENROLLMENT DATA: 

 
TK K  1  2  3  4  5/6  7/8    

 
5 25 23 26 26 24 24 24 

 

Total =  177  
 

 
        

 

III. PARENT & COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT: 

(1) Walden Academy had a great turnout for Sneak Peek and Back to School Night. 

(2) Walden parents earned many volunteer hours helping us get ready for the new school 

year. 

(3) TB vaccines are running short throughout the state. This is impacting our new 

volunteers’ ability to be cleared for classroom help.  

 

V. SPECIAL PROGRAMS/EVENTS/FIELDTRIPS   

(1) Assemblies are being booked for this year. Mike Graf, a local weathercaster, will be 

visiting in October to talk about writing realistic nonfiction books about our national 

parks. We are also working on a visit from the NED show, an interactive motivational 

assembly, for later this month. 

(2) We have received a lot of interest in Rosetta Stone, a foreign language program during 

enrichment. This program is a response to parent and Board feedback asking for foreign 

language instruction and more options for enrichment. 

(3) Landry Otterson is teaching music during enrichment this year. She will be starting a 

24 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



choir that will meet during enrichment time as well. 

 

VI. PERSONNEL 

 

VII. CURRICULUM, INSTRUCTION AND ASSESSMENT 

(1) Our official API was released…and it is 821! We made huge strides in closing the 

achievement gap (see Appendix A). I made good on my promise to wear a mustache for a 

week at recess to celebrate the students’ achievement. 

(2) We started the year with two minimum days for assessments. Walden’s staff is analyzing 

the data from these assessments and last year’s STAR to determine which students will 

need extra support this year. 

(3) We have an assessment calendar this year for benchmark assessments and DRAs 

(Developmental Reading Assessment). This calendar will help us to pace our instruction 

and reteach challenge standards to our students (see Appendix B). 

 

VIII. PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND INSERVICE ACTIVITIES 

(1) Walden Academy staff participated in a week of professional development before school 

started with sessions on FOSS (Full Option Science System) implementation, Mimio 

interactive whiteboards, and Responsive Classroom.  

(2) Three of our teachers; Ms. Shepherd, Ms. Lausten, and Ms. Zaro; are new to teaching this 

year and will be participating in BTSA (Beginning Teacher Support and Assessment) 

through Tehama County Office of Education.  Their support providers will be Laurel Hill-

Ward, Sera Maben, and Kathy Zabell. This is a two year induction program that will lead to 

their clear teaching credentials. It is mandated by the state of California for all new teachers. 

(3) Next Wednesday, Walden will join Lake and Capay schools to participate in a small school 

collaboration. We will be working on the transition to Common Core together. I have been 

planning the professional development with the principals from Lake and Capay. This 

opportunity will provide our teacher with grade level partners for planning and collaboration. 

(4) On September 23, we will join teachers from all of Glenn County at a professional 

development day that is being hosted by GCOE at Willows High School. There will be many 

workshops on Common Core, technology, writing, and more that teachers can choose from.  

 

IX. FACILITIES 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Mele Benz 

 

 

25 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Appendix A 

 
Met Growth Targets  
Schoolwide:  Yes  
All Student 
Groups:  

Yes  

All Targets:  Yes  
 
 

Groups 

    
  

 

Number of 
Students 

Included in 
2013 API 

Numerically 
Significant in 
Both Years  

 2013 
Growth  

2012 
Base 

2012-13 
Growth 
Target  

2012-13 
Growth  

  Met  Growth 
Target  

Schoolwide 91    

 
821 801 A 20    Yes 

 Black or African American 0 No 

         

 American Indian or Alaska Native 4 No 
         

 Asian 5 No 

         

 Filipino 0 No 

         

 Hispanic or Latino 23 No 

 
790 700 

      

 Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 No 

         

 White 59 No 

 
839 843 

      

Two or More Races 0  No         

 Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 17 No 

 
820 

       

 English Learners 5 No 
         

 Students with Disabilities 4 No 

       
 

Appendix B 

Walden Academy 13-14 Assessment Calendar 

Assessment Due Date 

Fall Assessments 

Math – Fall Benchmark (grades 1-8) August 29, 2013 

ELA – Fall Benchmark (grades 1-8) August 29, 2013 

Science – Fall Benchmark (grades 5 & 8) August 29, 2013 

DRA for new students (K-8) October 15, 2013 

Winter Assessments 

DRA for returning students (1-8) December 20, 2013 

Math – Pre-CST Benchmark  (grades 1-8) February 14, 2014 

ELA – Pre-CST Benchmark (grades 1-8) February 14, 2014 

Science – Pre-CST benchmark (grades 5 & 8) February 14, 2014 

End-of-Year Assessments 

STAR May 5-16, 2014 

DRA for all students (K-8) June 5, 2014 

 

26 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13

http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/ap/glossary13f.asp#gf8
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/ap/glossary13f.asp#gf9
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/ap/glossary13f.asp#gf9
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/ap/glossary13f.asp#gf10
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/ap/glossary13f.asp#gf15
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/ap/glossary13f.asp#gf16
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/ap/glossary13f.asp#gf16
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/ap/glossary13f.asp#gf16
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/ap/glossary13f.asp#gf16
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/ap/glossary13f.asp#gf17
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/ap/glossary13f.asp#gf17
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/ap/glossary13f.asp#gf17
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/ap/glossary13f.asp#gf4
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/ap/glossary13f.asp#gf4
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/ap/glossary13b.asp#ga3
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/ap/glossary13b.asp#ga3
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/ap/glossary13f.asp#gf6
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/ap/glossary13f.asp#gf6
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/ap/glossary13f.asp#gf6
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/ap/glossary13f.asp#gf7
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/ap/glossary13f.asp#gf7
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/ap/glossary13f.asp#gf8
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/ap/glossary13f.asp#gf8


T: 213-622-5114 F: 888-663-0126 • 700 S. Flower St. #3212, Los Angeles, CA 90017 ©2013 EdTec Inc. 

Walden Academy 

Financial Update 

September 10, 2013 

27 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



2 

Agenda 

 2013-14 Current Revenue Forecast 

 2013-14 Current Expense Forecast 

 2013-14 YTD Actuals 

 2013-14 Cash Flow Forecast 

 

 

 Exhibits 
– Cash Flow 

– August YTD Financials 

 

28 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



3 

Current Revenue Forecast: Aug. YTD Update 

 Increases to revenue forecast = $4.4K 

 CDE published Common Core entitlement, which is $4.4K higher than our budget 
($200/pupil, based on October 2012 enrollment) 

 

 Decreases to revenue forecast = $5.5K 

 The GCOE lease is less than budgeted, which impacts SB740 revenue 
– GCOE lease is $7.4K less, SB740 decreases by $5.5K 

Revenues have decreased since last month’s update, due to SB740, offset by 

Common Core.  

Current Revenue Forecast 

- $18K less than board approved budget (May) 
$1K less than previous month’s forecast - 

29 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



4 

 Increases to expense forecast = $0 
 

 Decreases to expense forecast = $7.4K 

 The Glenn County lease (MOU) is less than budgeted 

Expenses have decreased since last month’s update, due to rent expense. 

Current Expense Forecast 

$41K less than board approved budget (May) 

Current Expense Forecast: Aug. YTD Update 

- 
$7.4K less than previous month’s forecast - 

30 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



5 

2013 – 14 Current Forecast: Aug. YTD Update 

 Approved 
Budget 

Current 
Forecast

Variance 
(Previous vs. 

Current Forecast)

Variance 
(Budget vs. 

Current Forecast)
SUMMARY

Revenue

General Block Grant/Local Control 867,623         985,393                -                             117,770                
Federal Revenue 158,315         113,973                -                             (44,342)                 
Other State Revenues 204,866         113,533                (1,086)                   (91,333)                 
Local Revenues 15,130           15,130                  -                             -                             
Fundraising and Grants 15,476           15,476                  -                             -                             
Total Revenue 1,261,410      1,243,506            (1,086)                   (17,905)                 

Expenses

Compensation and Benefits 678,644         678,766                -                             (121)                      
Books and Supplies 159,293         126,669                -                             32,623                  
Services and Other Operating Expenditures 366,645         358,097                7,492                    8,547                    
Capital Outlay -                       -                             -                             -                             
Total Expenses 1,204,582      1,163,532            7,492                    41,050                  

Operating Income (excluding Depreciation) 56,828           79,974                  6,406                    23,145                  

Operating Income (including Depreciation) 56,828           79,974                  6,406                    23,145                  

Fund Balance

Beginning Balance (Unaudited) 139,018         245,544                
Operating Income (including Depreciation) 56,828           79,974                  

Ending Fund Balance (including Depreciation) 195,846         325,518                

CDE Recommendation (5% of Operating Expenses) 60,229        58,177             

31 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



6 

 Revenues: $17.7K slower than board approved budget 

 Walden has not yet received property tax – EdTec will follow up with districts 

 

 Expenses: $48K slower than board approved budget 

 $6K Compensation & Benefits:  we conservatively started more hourly wages in the 
August budget, but most will not start until September 

 $42K Books & Supplies:  school is spending slower than planned 

 

Walden is tracking approximately $30K ahead of the board approved budget 

(ahead = more positive). 

YTD Actuals 

$30K ahead of board approved budget 

2013 – 14 YTD Actuals 

+ 
[Only impacts timing, not overall forecast] 

32 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



7 

2013 – 14 YTD Actuals 

Actual YTD Budget YTD

Variance 
(YTD less 
Budget)

SUMMARY

Revenue

General Block Grant/Local Control 39,368          50,346          (10,978)         
Federal Revenue -                      -                      -                      
Other State Revenues -                      6,804             (6,804)           
Local Revenues 13                  -                      13                  
Fundraising and Grants -                      -                      -                      
Total Revenue 39,381          57,151          (17,770)         

Expenses

Compensation and Benefits 63,654          68,170          4,516             
Books and Supplies 15,304          56,906          41,602          
Services and Other Operating Expenditures 51,357          53,948          2,592             
Capital Outlay -                      -                      -                      
Total Expenses 130,315        179,024        48,710          

Operating Income (excluding Depreciation) (90,934)         (121,874)       30,940          

Operating Income (including Depreciation) (90,934)         (121,874)       30,940          

33 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



8 

Cash Flow Forecast 

 Changes since last month’s update 

 Common Core funds will be disbursed 50% in September and 50% in December  
 

 

 Financing 

 The school will renew the Tri Counties line of credit ($30K) in case a cash need should 
arise  

 

Given current forecast assumptions, cash flow is still expected to be positive 

for the remainder of the school year. 

34 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



9 

EXHIBITS 

 Cash Flow 

 August YTD Financials 

35 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy
Monthly Cash Forecast

As of most recent monthly close

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Forecast AP/AR

Actual Actual Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected

Beginning Cash 184,541            188,907            189,303            56,934             95,462             70,770             52,309             59,132             169,239          170,376          177,506          166,245          

Revenue

General Block Grant -                    39,368              91,796              100,168          60,482             60,482             100,168          103,787          85,253             86,799             27,043             27,043             985,393           203,002         

Federal Income -                    -                    -                    2,486               2,486               2,486               2,486               94,082             2,486               2,486               2,486               2,486               113,973           -                 

Other State Income -                    -                    14,500              -                   -                   14,500             -                   6,364               1,157               -                   41,364             -                   113,533           35,648           

Local Revenues 13                     -                    1,500                1,513               1,513               1,513               1,513               1,513               1,513               1,513               1,513               1,513               15,130              -                 

Fundraising and Grants -                    -                    1,548                1,548               1,548               1,548               1,548               1,548               1,548               1,548               1,548               1,548               15,476              -                 

Total Revenue 13                     39,368              109,344            105,715          66,029             80,529             105,715          207,294          91,957             92,346             73,954             32,590             1,243,506        238,650         

Expenses

Compensation & Benefits 14,970              48,684              84,418              62,014             61,770             61,770             63,720             62,014             62,014             59,948             59,948             37,497             678,766           -                     

Books & Supplies 1,075                14,229              70,737              4,514               4,514               4,514               4,514               4,514               4,514               4,514               4,514               4,514               126,669           -                     

Services & Other Operating Expenses 29,224              22,133              33,709              25,026             25,026             27,073             25,026             25,026             26,993             23,454             23,454             19,194             358,097           52,759           

Capital Outlay -                        -                        -                        -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                        -                     

Total Expenses 45,269              85,045              188,864            91,554             91,310             93,357             93,260             91,554             93,521             87,916             87,916             61,205             1,163,532        52,759           

Operating Cash Inflow (Outflow) (45,256)             (45,677)             (79,520)             14,161             (25,281)           (12,828)           12,455             115,740          (1,564)             4,430               (13,962)           (28,616)           79,974              185,891         

Revenues - Prior Year Accruals 95,279              36,874              (18,749)             30,000             6,221               -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Expenses - Prior Year Accruals -                        17,826              (18,323)             -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Accounts Receivable - Current Year -                        -                        -                        -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Accounts Payable - Current Year (42,222)             623                   (10,144)             -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Summerholdback for Teachers (14,558)             (9,250)               2,701                2,701               2,701               2,701               2,701               2,701               2,701               2,701               2,701               (6,850)             

Loans Payable (Current) -                        -                        -                        -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Loans Payable (Long Term) -                        -                        (8,333)               (8,333)             (8,333)             (8,333)             (8,333)             (8,333)             -                       -                       -                       -                       

Capital Leases Payable -                        -                        -                        -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Other Long Term Debt -                        -                        -                        -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Capital Expenditure & Depreciation -                        -                        -                        -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Other Balance Sheet Changes 11,123              -                    -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Ending Cash 188,907            189,303            56,934              95,462             70,770             52,309             59,132             169,239          170,376          177,506          166,245          130,779          

Actual & Projected

2013/14

36 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



9/6/2013 1 of 6

Walden Academy
Budget vs. Actuals

As of most recent monthly close

Aug Actual YTD Budget YTD

Variance 

(YTD less 

Budget)

 Approved 

Budget 

Previous Month's 

Forecast

Current 

Forecast

Variance 

(Previous vs. 

Current Forecast)

Variance 

(Budget vs. 

Current Forecast) Budget Remaining

Forecast 

Remaining

SUMMARY

Revenue

General Block Grant/Local Control 39,368           39,368           50,346           (10,978)         867,623          985,393              985,393               -                            117,770                828,255                946,025                

Federal Revenue -                    -                    -                    -                    158,315          113,973              113,973               -                            (44,342)                 158,315                113,973                

Other State Revenues -                    -                    6,804             (6,804)           204,866          114,620              113,533               (1,086)                   (91,333)                 204,866                113,533                

Local Revenues -                    13                  -                    13                  15,130            15,130                15,130                 -                            -                            15,117                  15,117                  

Fundraising and Grants -                    -                    -                    -                    15,476            15,476                15,476                 -                            -                            15,476                  15,476                  

Total Revenue 39,368           39,381           57,151           (17,770)         1,261,410       1,244,592           1,243,506            (1,086)                   (17,905)                 1,222,029             1,204,125             

Expenses

Compensation and Benefits 48,684           63,654           68,170           4,516             678,644          678,766              678,766               -                            (121)                      614,990                615,112                

Books and Supplies 14,229           15,304           56,906           41,602           159,293          126,669              126,669               -                            32,623                  143,989                111,365                

Services and Other Operating Expenditures 22,133           51,357           53,948           2,592             366,645          365,589              358,097               7,492                    8,547                    315,288                306,741                

Capital Outlay -                    -                    -                    -                    -                     -                         -                           -                            -                            -                            -                            

Total Expenses 85,045           130,315         179,024         48,710           1,204,582       1,171,024           1,163,532            7,492                    41,050                  1,074,267             1,033,218             

Operating Income (excluding Depreciation) (45,677)         (90,934)         (121,874)       30,940           56,828            73,568                79,974                 6,406                    23,145                  147,762                170,907                

Operating Income (including Depreciation) (45,677)         (90,934)         (121,874)       30,940           56,828            73,568                79,974                 6,406                    23,145                  147,762                170,907                

Fund Balance

Beginning Balance (Unaudited) 200,288         245,544         245,544         139,018          245,544              245,544               

Operating Income (including Depreciation) (45,677)         (90,934)         (121,874)       56,828            73,568                79,974                 

Ending Fund Balance (including Depreciation) 154,611         154,611         123,671         195,846          319,112              325,518               

CDE Recommendation (5% of Operating Expenses) 60,229         58,551             58,177              

Actual Budget vs. Actual Budget

37 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



9/6/2013 2 of 6

Walden Academy
Budget vs. Actuals

As of most recent monthly close

Aug Actual YTD Budget YTD

Variance 

(YTD less 

Budget)

 Approved 

Budget 

Previous Month's 

Forecast

Current 

Forecast

Variance 

(Previous vs. 

Current Forecast)

Variance 

(Budget vs. 

Current Forecast) Budget Remaining

Forecast 

Remaining

Actual Budget vs. Actual Budget

Detail

Enrollment Breakdown

K 30                   30                       30                        

1 22                   22                       22                        -                            -                            

2 25                   25                       25                        -                            -                            

3 25                   25                       25                        -                            -                            

4 22                   22                       22                        -                            -                            

5 12                   12                       12                        -                            -                            

6 13                   13                       13                        

7 16                   16                       16                        

8 9                     9                         9                          -                            -                            

9 -                 -                     -                       -                            -                            

10 -                 -                     -                       -                            -                            

11 -                 -                     -                       -                            -                            

12 -                 -                     -                       -                            -                            

Enrollment Summary -                 -                     -                       

K-3 102                 102                     102                      -                            -                            

4-6 47                   47                       47                        -                            -                            

7-8 25                   25                       25                        -                            -                            

9-12 -                 -                     -                       -                            -                            

Total Enrolled 174                 174                     174                      

ADA %

K-3 95% 95% 95%

4-6 95% 95% 95%

7-8 95% 95% 95%

9-12 95% 95% 95%

Average 95% 95% 95%

ADA

K-3 96.9 96.9 96.9

4-6 44.7 44.7 44.7

7-8 23.8 23.8 23.8

9-12 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total ADA 165.3 165.3 165.3

REVENUE

General Purpose Entitlement -                        -                        -                        -                        

8012 Education Protection Account -                -                -                -                -                 176,582              176,582               -                        176,582                -                        176,582                

8015 Charter Schools General Purpose Entitlement - State A 39,368           39,368           32,111           7,257             519,374          464,932              464,932               -                        (54,442)                 480,006                425,564                

8096 Charter Schools in Lieu of Prop. Taxes -                -                18,235           (18,235)         348,249          343,879              343,879               -                        (4,370)                   348,249                343,879                

Placeholder Local Control Funding Formula -                -                -                -                 -                     -                       -                        -                        -                        -                        

39,368           39,368           50,346           (10,978)         867,623          985,393              985,393               -                        117,770                828,255                946,025                

8100  Federal Revenue -                

8296  Federal REAP SRSA -                -                -                -                22,377            22,377                22,377                 -                        -                        22,377                  22,377                  

8298  Implementation Grant -                -                -                -                135,938          91,596                91,596                 -                        (44,342)                 135,938                91,596                  

SUBTOTAL - Federal Income -                -                -                -                158,315          113,973              113,973               -                        (44,342)                 158,315                113,973                

38 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



9/6/2013 3 of 6

Walden Academy
Budget vs. Actuals

As of most recent monthly close

Aug Actual YTD Budget YTD

Variance 

(YTD less 

Budget)

 Approved 

Budget 

Previous Month's 

Forecast

Current 

Forecast

Variance 

(Previous vs. 

Current Forecast)

Variance 

(Budget vs. 

Current Forecast) Budget Remaining

Forecast 

Remaining

Actual Budget vs. Actual Budget

8300  Other State Revenues -                

8545  School Facilities Apportionments -                -                -                -                56,614            62,325                56,763                 (5,562)                   149                       56,614                  56,763                  

8550  Mandated Cost Reimbursements -                -                -                -                2,384              2,314                  2,314                   -                        (70)                        2,384                    2,314                    

8560  State Lottery Revenue -                -                -                -                25,456            25,456                25,456                 -                        -                        25,456                  25,456                  

8592 Categorical Block Grant -                -                5,937             (5,937)           69,095            -                     -                       -                        (69,095)                 69,095                  -                        

0 Educationally Disadvantaged Block Grant -                868                (868)              6,422              -                     -                       -                        (6,422)                   6,422                    -                        

8593  New School Categorical -                -                -                -                20,993            -                     -                       -                        (20,993)                 20,993                  -                        

8594 Common Core -                -                -                -                23,902            24,524                29,000                 4,476                    5,098                    23,902                  29,000                  

SUBTOTAL - Other State Income -                -                6,804             (6,804)           204,866          114,620              113,533               (1,086)                   (91,333)                 204,866                113,533                

8600  Other Local Revenue

8676  After School Program Revenue -                -                -                -                15,130            15,130                15,130                 -                        -                        15,130                  15,130                  

8699  All Other Local Revenue -                13                  -                13                  -                 -                     -                       -                        -                        (13)                        (13)                        

SUBTOTAL - Local Revenues -                13                  -                13                  15,130            15,130                15,130                 -                        -                        15,117                  15,117                  

8800  Donations/Fundraising -                

8802  Donations - Private -                -                -                -                15,476            15,476                15,476                 -                        -                        15,476                  15,476                  

SUBTOTAL - Fundraising and Grants -                -                -                -                15,476            15,476                15,476                 -                        -                        15,476                  15,476                  

TOTAL REVENUE 39,368           39,381           57,151           (17,770)         1,261,410       1,244,592           1,243,506            (1,086)                   (17,905)                 1,222,029             1,204,125             

39 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



9/6/2013 4 of 6

Walden Academy
Budget vs. Actuals

As of most recent monthly close

Aug Actual YTD Budget YTD

Variance 

(YTD less 

Budget)

 Approved 

Budget 

Previous Month's 

Forecast

Current 

Forecast

Variance 

(Previous vs. 

Current Forecast)

Variance 

(Budget vs. 

Current Forecast) Budget Remaining

Forecast 

Remaining

Actual Budget vs. Actual Budget

-                -                        

EXPENSES

Compensation & Benefits

1000 Certificated Salaries -                

1100  Teachers Salaries 33,440           33,440           28,617           (4,823)           385,791          385,793              385,793               -                        (2)                          352,351                352,353                

1101  Teacher - Stipends -                -                -                -                15,000            15,000                15,000                 -                        -                        15,000                  15,000                  

1103  Teacher - Substitute Pay -                -                -                -                12,917            12,917                12,917                 -                        -                        12,917                  12,917                  

1300  Certificated Supervisor & Administrator Salaries 6,915             13,413           13,413           0                    80,480            80,480                80,480                 -                        -                        67,067                  67,067                  

SUBTOTAL - Certificated Employees 40,355           46,853           42,030           (4,823)           494,188          494,190              494,190               -                        (2)                          447,335                447,337                

2000 Classified Salaries

2100  Classified Instructional Aide Salaries 26                  26                  1,105             1,079             22,102            22,102                22,102                 -                        -                        22,076                  22,076                  

2400  Classified Clerical & Office Salaries 1,630             2,821             7,498             4,676             44,987            44,987                44,987                 -                        -                        42,166                  42,166                  

2905  Other Classified - After School -                -                518                518                10,358            10,358                10,358                 -                        -                        10,358                  10,358                  

SUBTOTAL - Classified Employees 1,656             2,847             9,121             6,274             77,447            77,447                77,447                 -                        -                        74,599                  74,599                  

3000 Employee Benefits

3100  STRS -                    -                    -                    -                    -                     -                         -                           -                            -                            -                            -                            

3200  PERS -                    -                    -                    -                    -                     -                         -                           -                            -                            -                            -                            

3300  OASDI-Medicare-Alternative 3,046             3,634             3,752             119                44,105            43,863                43,863                 -                            242                       40,471                  40,229                  

3400  Health & Welfare Benefits 646                3,702             4,125             423                16,500            16,500                16,500                 -                            -                            12,798                  12,798                  

3500  Unemployment Insurance 538                538                487                (51)                4,953              4,874                  4,874                   -                            79                         4,415                    4,336                    

3600  Workers Comp Insurance 836                4,123             6,738             2,616             19,435            19,436                19,436                 -                            (0)                          15,312                  15,313                  

3700  Retiree Benefits -                    -                    1,916             1,916             22,017            22,456                22,456                 -                            (439)                      22,017                  22,456                  

3800  PERS Reduction -                    -                    -                    -                    -                     -                         -                           -                            -                            -                            -                            

3900  Other Employee Benefits 1,607             1,957             -                    (1,957)           -                     -                         -                           -                            -                            (1,957)                   (1,957)                   

SUBTOTAL - Employee Benefits 6,673             13,954           17,019           3,065             107,010          107,129              107,129               -                        (119)                      93,056                  93,175                  

40 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



9/6/2013 5 of 6

Walden Academy
Budget vs. Actuals

As of most recent monthly close

Aug Actual YTD Budget YTD

Variance 

(YTD less 

Budget)

 Approved 

Budget 

Previous Month's 

Forecast

Current 

Forecast

Variance 

(Previous vs. 

Current Forecast)

Variance 

(Budget vs. 

Current Forecast) Budget Remaining

Forecast 

Remaining

Actual Budget vs. Actual Budget

4000 Books & Supplies

4100  Approved Textbooks & Core Curricula Materials 9,863             10,910           22,572           11,662           56,429            23,806                23,806                 -                        32,623                  45,519                  12,896                  

4200  Books & Other Reference Materials -                -                8,164             8,164             20,410            20,410                20,410                 -                        -                        20,410                  20,410                  

4300  Materials & Supplies 267                267                -                (267)              10,582            10,582                10,582                 -                        -                        10,315                  10,315                  

4315  Custodial Supplies 32                  32                  248                216                2,732              2,732                  2,732                   -                        -                        2,699                    2,699                    

4320  Educational Software -                -                2,800             2,800             3,500              3,500                  3,500                   -                        -                        3,500                    3,500                    

4330  Office Supplies 51                  51                  440                389                4,840              4,840                  4,840                   -                        -                        4,789                    4,789                    

4335  PE Supplies 2,223             2,223             2,200             (23)                5,500              5,500                  5,500                   -                        -                        3,277                    3,277                    

4340  Professional Development Supplies -                -                64                  64                  700                 700                     700                      -                        -                        700                       700                       

4346  Teacher Supplies 44                  72                  191                119                2,100              2,100                  2,100                   -                        -                        2,028                    2,028                    

4410  Classroom Furniture, Equipment & Supplies -                -                6,000             6,000             15,000            15,000                15,000                 -                        -                        15,000                  15,000                  

4420  Computers (individual items less than $5k) 1,749             1,749             8,000             6,251             20,000            20,000                20,000                 -                        -                        18,251                  18,251                  

4430  Non Classroom Related Furniture, Equipment & Supp -                -                6,000             6,000             15,000            15,000                15,000                 -                        -                        15,000                  15,000                  

4720  Other Food -                -                227                227                2,500              2,500                  2,500                   -                        -                        2,500                    2,500                    

SUBTOTAL - Books and Supplies 14,229           15,304           56,906           41,602           159,293          126,669              126,669               -                        32,623                  143,989                111,365                

5000 Services & Other Operating Expenses

5200  Travel & Conferences 398                398                -                (398)              5,750              5,750                  5,750                   -                        -                        5,352                    5,352                    

5305  Dues & Membership - Professional -                -                -                -                4,500              4,500                  4,500                   -                        -                        4,500                    4,500                    

5450  Insurance - Other 1,063             5,374             5,470             96                  15,912            15,912                15,912                 -                        -                        10,538                  10,538                  

5515  Janitorial, Gardening Services & Supplies -                -                2,275             2,275             13,650            13,650                13,650                 -                        -                        13,650                  13,650                  

5520  Security -                -                9                    9                    52                   52                       52                        -                        -                        52                         52                         

5535  Utilities - All Utilities 255                771                2,166             1,395             12,998            12,998                12,998                 -                        -                        12,227                  12,227                  

5605  Equipment Leases 217                658                696                38                  4,178              4,178                  4,178                   -                        -                        3,520                    3,520                    

5610  Rent 5,450             16,840           20,775           3,935             83,100            83,100                75,684                 7,416                    7,416                    66,260                  58,844                  

5615  Repairs and Maintenance - Building -                -                -                -                10,000            10,000                10,000                 -                        -                        10,000                  10,000                  

5616  Repairs and Maintenance - Computers -                -                -                -                1,000              1,000                  1,000                   -                        -                        1,000                    1,000                    

5617  Repairs and Maintenance - Other Equipment -                -                -                -                618                 618                     618                      -                        -                        618                       618                       

5803  Accounting Fees -                -                -                -                8,189              8,189                  8,189                   -                        -                        8,189                    8,189                    

5806  Assemblies -                -                -                -                2,251              2,251                  2,251                   -                        -                        2,251                    2,251                    

5809  Banking Fees 60                  105                71                  (34)                426                 426                     426                      -                        -                        321                       321                       

5812  Business Services 6,424             12,848           12,848           0                    77,090            75,913                75,837                 76                         1,253                    64,242                  62,988                  

5820  Consultants - Non Instructional - Custom 1 -                -                -                -                1,500              1,500                  1,500                   -                        -                        1,500                    1,500                    

5824  District Oversight Fees -                -                -                -                9,431              9,854                  9,854                   -                        (423)                      9,431                    9,854                    

5830  Field Trips Expenses -                -                -                -                12,225            12,225                12,225                 -                        -                        12,225                  12,225                  

5836  Fingerprinting -                -                160                160                300                 300                     300                      -                        -                        300                       300                       

5839  Fundraising Expenses -                -                -                -                1,366              1,366                  1,366                   -                        -                        1,366                    1,366                    

41 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



9/6/2013 6 of 6

Walden Academy
Budget vs. Actuals

As of most recent monthly close

Aug Actual YTD Budget YTD

Variance 

(YTD less 

Budget)

 Approved 

Budget 

Previous Month's 

Forecast

Current 

Forecast

Variance 

(Previous vs. 

Current Forecast)

Variance 

(Budget vs. 

Current Forecast) Budget Remaining

Forecast 

Remaining

Actual Budget vs. Actual Budget

5843  Interest - Loans Less than 1 Year -                204                -                (204)              782                 481                     481                      -                        301                       578                       277                       

5845  Legal Fees 97                  97                  -                (97)                8,000              8,000                  8,000                   -                        -                        7,903                    7,903                    

5848  Licenses and Other Fees -                -                -                -                5,000              5,000                  5,000                   -                        -                        5,000                    5,000                    

5851  Marketing and Student Recruiting 250                250                -                (250)              5,000              5,000                  5,000                   -                        -                        4,750                    4,750                    

5857  Payroll Fees 97                  201                473                271                2,837              2,837                  2,837                   -                        -                        2,635                    2,635                    

5860  Printing and Reproduction -                -                -                -                1,051              1,051                  1,051                   -                        -                        1,051                    1,051                    

5861  Prior Yr Exp (not accrued) -                -                -                -                165                 165                     165                      -                        -                        165                       165                       

5863  Professional Development 7,200             7,200             1,132             (6,068)           12,450            12,450                12,450                 -                        -                        5,250                    5,250                    

5865  Service 16 -                -                -                -                1,200              1,200                  1,200                   -                        -                        1,200                    1,200                    

5872  Special Education Encroachment -                -                -                -                42,905            42,905                42,905                 -                        -                        42,905                  42,905                  

5877  Student Activities -                -                -                -                500                 500                     500                      -                        -                        500                       500                       

5878  Student Assessment -                -                920                920                2,300              2,300                  2,300                   -                        -                        2,300                    2,300                    

5881  Student Information System -                5,425             5,400             (25)                5,400              5,400                  5,400                   -                        -                        (25)                        (25)                        

5887  Technology Services -                -                -                -                4,000              4,000                  4,000                   -                        -                        4,000                    4,000                    

5905  Communications - Cell Phones -                -                60                  60                  360                 360                     360                      -                        -                        360                       360                       

5910  Communications - Internet / Website Fees -                -                833                833                5,000              5,000                  5,000                   -                        -                        5,000                    5,000                    

5915  Postage and Delivery -                -                -                -                1,200              1,200                  1,200                   -                        -                        1,200                    1,200                    

5920  Communications - Telephone & Fax 323                687                660                (27)                3,960              3,960                  3,960                   -                        -                        3,273                    3,273                    

SUBTOTAL - Services & Other Operating Exp. 22,133           51,357           53,948           2,592             366,645          365,589              358,097               7,492                    8,547                    315,288                306,741                

6000 Capital Outlay

6100  Sites & Improvement of Sites -                -                -                -                -                 -                     -                       -                        -                        -                        -                        

6200  Buildings & Improvement of Buildings -                -                -                -                -                 -                     -                       -                        -                        -                        -                        

6300  School Libraries -                -                -                -                -                 -                     -                       -                        -                        -                        -                        

6400  Equipment -                -                -                -                -                 -                     -                       -                        -                        -                        -                        

6410  Computers (capitalizable items) -                -                -                -                -                 -                     -                       -                        -                        -                        -                        

6420  Furniture (capitalizable items) -                -                -                -                -                 -                     -                       -                        -                        -                        -                        

6430  Other Equipment (capitalizable items) -                -                -                -                -                 -                     -                       -                        -                        -                        -                        

6500  Equipment Replacement -                -                -                -                -                 -                     -                       -                        -                        -                        -                        

SUBTOTAL - Capital Outlay -                -                -                -                -                 -                     -                       -                        -                        -                        -                        

TOTAL EXPENSES 85,045           130,315         179,024         48,710           1,204,582       1,171,024           1,163,532            7,492                    41,050                  1,074,267             1,033,218             

6900 Total Depreciation (includes Prior Years) -                -                -                -                -                 -                     -                       -                        -                        -                        -                        

TOTAL EXPENSES including Depreciation 85,045           130,315         179,024         48,710           1,204,582       1,171,024           1,163,532            7,492                    41,050                  1,074,267             1,033,218             

42 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



California Department of Education

Charter School Financial Report

Certification Form (Revised 06/10/13) vs 8

Page 1 of 1

9/6/2013   1:25 PM     

CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTUALS

FINANCIAL REPORT -- ALTERNATIVE FORM

July 1, 2012  to  June 30, 2013

CHARTER SCHOOL CERTIFICATION

Charter School Name:

CDS #:

Charter Approving Entity:

County:

Charter #:

For information regarding this report, please contact:

For Approving Entity: For Charter School:

Name Name

Title Title

Telephone Telephone

E-mail address E-mail address

To the entity that approved the charter school:

( X ) 2012-13 CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTUALS FINANCIAL REPORT -- ALTERNATIVE FORM:  This report

has been approved, and is hereby filed by the charter school pursuant to Education Code  Section 42100(b).

Signed:       Date:
Charter School Official

(Original signature required)

Printed

Name:        Title:

To the County Superintendent of Schools:

( X ) 2012-13 CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTUALS FINANCIAL REPORT -- ALTERNATIVE FORM:  This report

is hereby filed with the County Superintendent pursuant to Education Code  Section 42100(a).

Signed:       Date:
Authorized Representative of

Charter Approving Entity

(Original signature required)

Printed

Name:        Title:

To the Superintendent of Public Instruction:

( X ) 2012-13 CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTUALS FINANCIAL REPORT -- ALTERNATIVE FORM:  This report has been

verified for mathematical accuracy by the County Superintendent of Schools pursuant to Education Code  Section 42100(a).

Signed:       Date:

County Superintendent/Designee

(Original signature required)

1350

Client Manager, EdTec

(530) 934-6575

Merrilee Vanderwaal CFO

(213) 622-5114

jennie@edtec.comrjones@glenncoe.org

Walden Academy

11101160124909.

Glenn County Office of Education

Glenn County  

Business Services

NOTE:  An Alternative Form submitted to the California Department of Education will not be considered a valid 

submission if the following information is missing:

Randy Jones Jennie Bartkowiak

43 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



California Department of Education

Charter School Financial Report

Certification Form (Revised 06/10/11)

Page 1 of 6

9/6/2013 1:25 PM

This charter school uses the following basis of accounting:

(Please enter an "X" in the applicable box below; check only one box)

X Accrual Basis (Applicable Capital Assets/Interest on Long-Term Debt/Long-Term Liabilities/Net Position objects are 6900, 7438, 

9400-9499, 9660-9669, 9796, and 9797)

Modified Accrual Basis (Applicable Capital Outlay/Debt Service/Fund Balance objects are 6100-6170, 6200-6500, 7438, 7439,

  and 9711-9789) 

              Description Object Code Unrestricted Restricted Total

A. REVENUES  

1. Revenue Limit Sources  

State Aid - Current Year 8011  0.00

Education Protection Account State Aid - Current Year 8012 158,500.77 158,500.77

Charter Schools General Purpose Entitlement - State Aid 8015 269,831.81 269,831.81

State Aid - Prior Years 8019 278.00 278.00

Tax Relief Subventions (for revenue limit funded schools) 8020-8039 0.00

County and District Taxes (for revenue limit funded schools) 8040-8079 0.00

Miscellaneous Funds (for revenue limit funded schools) 8080-8089 0.00

Revenue Limit Transfers (for revenue limit funded schools)  

   PERS Reduction Transfer 8092 0.00

   Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes 8096 312,702.91 312,702.91

   Other Revenue Limit Transfers 8091, 8097 0.00

          Total, Revenue Limit Sources  741,313.49 0.00 741,313.49
 

2. Federal Revenues (see NOTE in Section J)  

No Child Left Behind 8290 0.00

Special Education - Federal 8181, 8182 0.00

Child Nutrition - Federal 8220 0.00

Other Federal Revenues 8110, 8260-8299  416,188.03 416,188.03

          Total, Federal Revenues  0.00 416,188.03 416,188.03
 

3. Other State Revenues  

Special Education - State StateRevSE 0.00

All Other State Revenues StateRevAO 111,579.33 54,965.00 166,544.33

         Total, Other State Revenues  111,579.33 54,965.00 166,544.33
 

4. Other Local Revenues  

All Other Local Revenues LocalRevAO 25,117.65 25,117.65

          Total, Local Revenues  25,117.65 0.00 25,117.65
   

5. TOTAL REVENUES  878,010.47 471,153.03 1,349,163.50
 

B. EXPENDITURES (see NOTE in Section J)  

1. Certificated Salaries  

Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 253,776.21 105,874.57 359,650.78

Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00

Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 47,067.73 30,309.73 77,377.46

Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00

          Total, Certificated Salaries  300,843.94 136,184.30 437,028.24
 

2. Noncertificated Salaries  

Noncertificated Instructional Salaries 2100 7,346.46 21,725.00 29,071.46

Noncertificated Support Salaries 2200 0.00

Charter #:

Glenn County Office of Education

Glenn County  

1350

County:

Charter Approving Entity:

CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTUALS

July 1, 2012  to  June 30, 2013

FINANCIAL REPORT -- ALTERNATIVE FORM

CDS #:

Charter School Name:

11101160124909.

Walden Academy

44 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



California Department of Education

Charter School Financial Report

Certification Form (Revised 06/10/11)

Page 2 of 6

9/6/2013 1:25 PM

CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTUALS

July 1, 2012  to  June 30, 2013

FINANCIAL REPORT -- ALTERNATIVE FORM

CDS #:

Charter School Name:

11101160124909.

Walden Academy

              Description Object Code Unrestricted Restricted Total

Noncertificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 0.00

Clerical and Office Salaries 2400 34,198.71 1,893.45 36,092.16

Other Noncertificated Salaries 2900 13,874.56 13,874.56

          Total, Noncertificated Salaries  55,419.73 23,618.45 79,038.18

3. Employee Benefits  

STRS 3101-3102 0.00

PERS 3201-3202 0.00

OASDI / Medicare / Alternative 3301-3302 37,908.94 37,908.94

Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 12,679.05 12,679.05

Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 7,167.10 7,167.10

Workers' Compensation Insurance 3601-3602 8,021.73 8,021.73

OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00

OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00

PERS Reduction (for revenue limit funded schools) 3801-3802 0.00

Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 15,993.45 15,993.45

          Total, Employee Benefits  81,770.27 0.00 81,770.27
 

4. Books and Supplies  

Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 2,084.74 80,521.97 82,606.71

Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 2,824.39 2,824.39

Materials and Supplies 4300 304.79 17,921.78 18,226.57

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 201.77 122,917.27 123,119.04

Food 4700 1,467.33 25.18 1,492.51

          Total, Books and Supplies  4,058.63 224,210.59 228,269.22
 

5. Services and Other Operating Expenditures  

Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00

Travel and Conferences 5200 17.61 6,131.64 6,149.25

Dues and Memberships 5300 625.00 625.00

Insurance 5400 10,788.17 10,788.17

Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 15,755.66 178.00 15,933.66

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncap. Improvements 5600 17,062.13 60,633.97 77,696.10

Professional/Consulting Services and Operating Expend. 5800 153,046.19 19,220.38 172,266.57

Communications 5900 5,338.78 975.70 6,314.48

          Total, Services and Other Operating Expenditures  202,633.54 87,139.69 289,773.23
            

6. Capital Outlay  

(Objects 6100-6170, 6200-6500 for modified accrual basis only) 
Land and Land Improvements 6100-6170 0.00

Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00

Books and Media for New School Libraries or Major  

     Expansion of School Libraries 6300 0.00

Equipment 6400 0.00

Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00

Depreciation Expense (for accrual basis only) 6900 0.00

           Total, Capital Outlay  0.00 0.00 0.00
 

7. Other Outgo  

 Tuition to Other Schools 7110-7143 0.00

Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues to Other LEAs 7211-7213  0.00

Transfers of Apportionments to Other LEAs - Spec. Ed. 7221-7223SE  0.00

Transfers of Apportionments to Other LEAs - All Other 7221-7223AO  0.00

All Other Transfers 7281-7299  0.00

45 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



California Department of Education

Charter School Financial Report

Certification Form (Revised 06/10/11)

Page 3 of 6

9/6/2013 1:25 PM

CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTUALS

July 1, 2012  to  June 30, 2013

FINANCIAL REPORT -- ALTERNATIVE FORM

CDS #:

Charter School Name:

11101160124909.

Walden Academy

              Description Object Code Unrestricted Restricted Total

Debt Service:  

     Interest 7438 350.00 350.00

     Principal (for modified accrual basis only) 7439 0.00

           Total Debt Service 350.00 0.00 350.00

Total, Other Outgo  350.00 0.00 350.00
 

8. TOTAL EXPENDITURES  645,076.11 471,153.03 1,116,229.14
 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES  

BEFORE OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5-B8)  232,934.36 0.00 232,934.36

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES / USES  

1. Other Sources 8930-8979 0.00

2. Less:  Other Uses 7630-7699 0.00

3. Contributions Between Unrestricted and Restricted Accounts

(must net to zero) 8980-8999 0.00
  

4. TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES / USES  0.00 0.00 0.00
 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE (C+D4)  232,934.36 0.00 232,934.36
  

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES  

1. Beginning Fund Balance

a. As of July 1 9791 16,435.24 16,435.24

 b. Adjustments/Restatements to Beginning Balance 9793, 9795 0.00

c. Adjusted Beginning Balance  16,435.24 0.00 16,435.24
2. Ending Fund Balance, June 30 (E+F1c)  249,369.60 0.00 249,369.60

a. Nonspendable

1.  Revolving Cash (equals Object 9130) 9711 0.00

2.  Stores (equals Object 9320)        9712 0.00

3.  Prepaid Expenditures (equals Object 9330) 9713 0.00

4.  All Others 9719 0.00

b. Restricted 9740  0.00

c. Committed

1.  Stabilization Arrangements 9750  0.00

2.  Other Commitments 9760 0.00

d. Assigned 9780 0.00

e. Unassigned/Unappropriated 0.00

1.  Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00

2.  Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790M 0.00

f. Components of Ending Net Position (Accrual Basis)
1.  Net Investment in Capital Assets 9796 0.00

2.  Restricted Net Position 9797 0.00

3.  Unrestricted Net Position 9790A 249,369.60 0.00 249,369.60

G. ASSETS  

1. Cash  

In County Treasury 9110 0.00

Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 9111 0.00

In Banks 9120 180,456.93 180,456.93

In Revolving Fund 9130  0.00

With Fiscal Agent/Trustee 9135  0.00

Components of Ending Fund Balance (Modified Accrual Basis) (Optional)

46 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



California Department of Education

Charter School Financial Report

Certification Form (Revised 06/10/11)

Page 4 of 6

9/6/2013 1:25 PM

CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTUALS

July 1, 2012  to  June 30, 2013

FINANCIAL REPORT -- ALTERNATIVE FORM

CDS #:

Charter School Name:

11101160124909.

Walden Academy

              Description Object Code Unrestricted Restricted Total

Collections Awaiting Deposit 9140  0.00
2. Investments 9150 0.00

3. Accounts Receivable 9200 302,423.81 302,423.81

4. Due from Grantor Governments 9290 0.00

5. Stores 9320   0.00

6. Prepaid Expenditures (Expenses) 9330 11,122.91  11,122.91

7. Other Current Assets 9340 4,077.00 4,077.00

8. Capital Assets (for accrual basis only) 9400-9499 0.00
 

9. TOTAL ASSETS  498,080.65 0.00 498,080.65

H. LIABILITIES  

1. Accounts Payable 9500 98,711.05 98,711.05

2. Due to Grantor Governments 9590 0.00

3. Current Loans 9640  0.00

4. Deferred Revenue 9650   0.00

5. Long-Term Liabilities (for accrual basis only) 9660-9669 150,000.00 150,000.00
 

6. TOTAL LIABILITIES  248,711.05 0.00 248,711.05
 

I. FUND BALANCE  

Ending Fund Balance, June 30 (G9-H6)

(must agree with Line F2)  249,369.60 0.00 249,369.60

47 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



California Department of Education

Charter School Financial Report

Certification Form (Revised 06/10/11)

Page 5 of 6

9/6/2013 1:25 PM

CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTUALS

July 1, 2012  to  June 30, 2013

FINANCIAL REPORT -- ALTERNATIVE FORM

CDS #:

Charter School Name:

11101160124909.

Walden Academy

J. FEDERAL NO CHILD LEFT BEHIND (NCLB) MAINTENANCE OF EFFORT REQUIREMENT

NOTE:   IF YOUR CHARTER SCHOOL RECEIVED FEDERAL FUNDING, AS REPORTED IN SECTION A2,  THE FOLLOWING

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION MUST BE PROVIDED IN ORDER FOR THE CDE TO CALCULATE COMPLIANCE WITH

THE FEDERAL NO CHILD LEFT BEHIND (NCLB) MAINTENANCE OF EFFORT REQUIREMENT:

1. Federal Revenue Used for Capital Outlay and Debt Service

 Included in the Capital Outlay and Debt Service expenditures reported in sections B6 and B7 are 

the following amounts paid out of federal funds: 

                         Federal Program Name (If no amounts, indicate "NONE")                                    Capital Outlay      Debt Service             Total          

a. None $ 0.00 0.00 0.00

b. 0.00

c. 0.00

d. 0.00

e. 0.00

f. 0.00

g. 0.00

h. 0.00

i. 0.00

j. 0.00

TOTAL FEDERAL REVENUES USED FOR CAPITAL OUTLAY AND DEBT SERVICE 0.00 0.00 0.00

2. Community Services Expenditures

 Provide the amount of State and Local funds reported in Section B that were expended for Community Services Activities:

Amount

Objects of Expenditures          (Enter "0.00" if none)      

a. Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00

b. Noncertificated Salaries 2000-2999 0.00

c. Employee Benefits                                    (except 3801-3802)  3000-3999 0.00

d. Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00

e. Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 0.00

TOTAL COMMUNITY SERVICES EXPENDITURES 0.00

48 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



California Department of Education

Charter School Financial Report

Certification Form (Revised 06/10/11)

Page 6 of 6

9/6/2013 1:25 PM

CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTUALS

July 1, 2012  to  June 30, 2013

FINANCIAL REPORT -- ALTERNATIVE FORM

CDS #:

Charter School Name:

11101160124909.

Walden Academy

3. State and Local Expenditures to be Used for Annual NCLB Maintenance of Effort Calculation:

Results of this calculation will be used for comparison with 2011-12 expenditures. Failure to maintain the required

90 percent expenditure level on either an aggregate or per capita expenditure basis will result in reduction to
allocations for covered programs in 2014-15.

a. Total Expenditures (B8) 1,116,229.14

b. Less Federal Expenditures (Total A2)

[Revenues are used as proxy for expenditures because most federal revenues 416,188.03

are normally recognized in the period that qualifying expenditures are incurred]

c. Subtotal of State & Local Expenditures 700,041.11

[a minus b]

d. Less Community Services 0.00

[J2 Total]

e. Less Capital Outlay & Debt Service 350.00

[Total B6 plus objects 7438 and 7439, less J1 Total]

TOTAL STATE & LOCAL EXPENDITURES SUBJECT TO MOE $ 699,691.11

[c minus d minus e]

49 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



  Updated 6/30/2011 

 

 

 

 

 
Walden Academy, Inc. 

 
Employee Handbook 

2012-2013 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Willows, CA 
Website: http://www.waldenacademy.org 

 
 

  

50 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

1 
 

Table of Contents  

THE MISSION OF WALDEN ACADEMY   ................................................................................................................................. 1

PURPOSE OF THIS HANDBOOK   ........................................................................................................................................... 1

SECTION 1: EMPLOYMENT   ...................................................................................................................................................... 2

EMPLOYMENT AT-WILL   ....................................................................................................................................................... 2

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY IS OUR POLICY   ........................................................................................................ 2

CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECKS   ...................................................................................................................................... 3

TUBERCULOSIS TESTING   ..................................................................................................................................................... 3

STAFF CLASSIFICATION   ........................................................................................................................................................ 3

CERTIFICATION - TEACHING STAFF   ..................................................................................................................................... 4

CLASSIFIED STAFF, SUBSTITUTES, AND CONSULTANTS   ...................................................................................................... 4

SECTION 2: EMPLOYMENT STANDARDS   ................................................................................................................................. 5

EMPLOYEE CODE OF CONDUCT   .......................................................................................................................................... 5

EMPLOYEE DISHONESTY   ..................................................................................................................................................... 5

ANTI-HARASSMENT   ............................................................................................................................................................. 6

SEXUAL HARASSMENT   ........................................................................................................................................................ 6

ATTENDANCE AND PUNCTUALITY  ....................................................................................................................................... 7

DRUG, ALCOHOL, VIOLENCE AND SMOKE-FREE ENVIRONMENT   ....................................................................................... 8

ITEMS PROHIBITED AT SCHOOL   .......................................................................................................................................... 8

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION - REGARDING STUDENTS   ................................................................................................... 8

CONFLICT OF INTEREST   ....................................................................................................................................................... 8

CHILD NEGLECT AND ABUSE REPORTING   ........................................................................................................................... 9

WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY   .................................................................................................................................................... 9

PERSONAL APPEARANCE   ................................................................................................................................................... 10

SECTION 3: EMPLOYEE WAGES AND HOURS   ........................................................................................................................ 11

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT   ............................................................................................................................................. 11

OVERTIME PAY   .................................................................................................................................................................. 11

COMPENSATORY TIME   ...................................................................................................................................................... 11

HOLIDAYS   .......................................................................................................................................................................... 12

WORK SCHEDULE   .............................................................................................................................................................. 12

PARTICIPATION IN AFTER-HOURS PROGRAMS   ................................................................................................................. 12

REGULAR EARLY RELEASE DAY   .......................................................................................................................................... 13

51 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

2 
 

MEAL & REST PERIODS   ...................................................................................................................................................... 13

PAYROLL   ............................................................................................................................................................................ 13

SECTION 4: HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS   ...................................................................................................................... 15

HEALTH BENEFITS   ............................................................................................................................................................. 15

RETIREMENT BENEFITS   ..................................................................................................................................................... 15

SECTION 5: LEAVE   ................................................................................................................................................................. 16

PAID TIME OFF LEAVE   ....................................................................................................................................................... 16

BEREAVEMENT LEAVE   ....................................................................................................................................................... 16

STATE DISABILITY INSURANCE   .......................................................................................................................................... 17

INDUSTRIAL INJURY LEAVE (WORKERS’ COMPENSATION)   ............................................................................................... 17

FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE   .................................................................................................................................. 18

PREGNANCY DISABILITY LEAVE   ......................................................................................................................................... 21

INSURANCE COVERAGE CONTINUANCE   ........................................................................................................................... 24

MILITARY AND SPOUSAL LEAVE OF ABSENCE   ................................................................................................................... 24

JURY DUTY OR WITNESS LEAVE   ........................................................................................................................................ 25

VOTING TIME OFF   ............................................................................................................................................................. 25

RETURNING FROM LEAVE OF ABSENCE   ............................................................................................................................ 25

SECTION 8: THE WORKPLACE   ................................................................................................................................................ 26

RIGHT TO PRIVACY   ............................................................................................................................................................ 26

PERSONNEL FILES AND RECORD KEEPING PROTOCOLS   .................................................................................................... 26

HEALTH AND SAFETY   ......................................................................................................................................................... 27

SCHOOL FACILITIES  ............................................................................................................................................................ 27

ACCIDENT/INJURY INCIDENT REPORTING  ......................................................................................................................... 27

USE OF WALDEN ACADEMY E-MAIL AND VOICEMAIL   ...................................................................................................... 27

PHONE CALLS   .................................................................................................................................................................... 28

SECTION 9: DISCIPLINE AND TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT   ........................................................................................... 29

MISCONDUCT SUBJECT TO DISCIPLINE UP TO AND INCLUDING DISMISSAL   .................................................................... 29

NON-DISCLOSURE OF PERSONNEL INFORMATION   ........................................................................................................... 30

RESIGNATION   .................................................................................................................................................................... 30

SALARY AND BENEFITS IN THE EVENT OF TERMINATION   ................................................................................................. 30

SECTION 10: DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCESS   ...................................................................................................................... 31

PROBLEM RESOLUTION PROCEDURE   ................................................................................................................................ 31

52 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

3 
 

GRIEVANCES FROM PARENTS, STUDENTS OR COMMUNITY MEMBERS   .......................................................................... 32

APPENDIX A: CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECKS   ................................................................................................................... 33

APPENDIX B: SEXUAL HARASSMENT   ..................................................................................................................................... 36

SEXUAL HARRASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURE   ........................................................................................................... 36

Investigations and No Retaliation   ..................................................................................................................................... 37

APPENDIX C: COMPLAINT FORM   .......................................................................................................................................... 40

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK   ............................................................................................. 41

 

53 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

1 
 

WELCOME TO WALDEN ACADEMY  

On behalf of the Board of Directors, families and students of Walden Academy, we would like to 
welcome you to our community of learners in pursuit of an excellent education for all children. At 
Walden Academy, we believe each one of us has strengths to offer in addition to having areas for 
growth. We deeply value your commitment to work at Walden Academy and to engage in our 
collaborative process of learning for all. We are excited to learn and grow with you.  

THE MISSION OF WALDEN ACADEMY 

The mission of Walden Academy is to provide a learning environment that extends beyond the 
classroom and textbooks and stimulates and nurtures a students’ desire to learn. Students will be 
exposed to a learning environment that helps them gain the knowledge, skills, perspectives and 
practices to be responsible citizens. Natural Resources Education will provide an avenue for this 
development that can engage the students far beyond the classroom.   

PURPOSE OF THIS HANDBOOK  

This Handbook is designed to help employees get acquainted with Walden Academy 
(hereinafter referred to as “Walden” or the “School”). It explains some of our philosophies and beliefs, 
and describes in general terms, some of our employment guidelines. We hope that it serves as a 
useful reference document for employees throughout their employment at Walden Academy.  
 
Employees should understand, however, that this Handbook is not intended to be a contract (express 
or implied), nor is it intended to otherwise create any legally enforceable obligations on the part of the 
School or its employees. In no way does the Handbook replace any official plan documents (e.g., 
health insurance, retirement plan, etc.) or insurance contracts, which will govern in all cases. This 
Handbook supersedes and replaces all previous personnel policies, practices, and guidelines. 
 
Due to the fact that the School is a growing and changing organization, it reserves full discretion to 
add to, modify, or delete provisions of this Handbook, or the policies and procedures on which they 
may be based, at any time without advance notice. The School also reserves the right to interpret any 
of the provisions set forth in this Handbook in any manner it deems appropriate. As the policies are 
revised, updated pages will be distributed to you. Please keep your Handbook available and insert 
the updated material promptly so that your Handbook is current at all times. 
 
No individual other than the Board of Directors has the authority to enter into any employment or 
other agreement that modifies School policy. Any such modification must be in writing. 
 
Employees must sign the acknowledgment form at the end of this Handbook, tear it out, and return it 

to the School Director. This will provide the School with a record that each employee has received 

this Handbook. 

54 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

2 
 

SECTION 1: EMPLOYMENT 

EMPLOYMENT AT-WILL 

Except if stated expressly otherwise by employment contract, it is the policy of the School that all 
employees are considered “at-will” employees of the School. Accordingly, either the School or the 
employee can terminate this relationship at any time, for any reason, with or without cause, and with 
or without advance notice. 
 
Nothing contained in this Handbook, employment applications, School memoranda or other materials 
provided to employees in connection with their employment shall require the School to have “cause” 
to terminate an employee or otherwise restrict the School’s right to release an employee from their at-
will employment with the School. Statements of specific grounds for termination set forth in this 
Handbook or elsewhere are not all-inclusive and are not intended to restrict the School’s right to 
terminate at-will. No School representative, other than the Board of Directors or its designee, is 
authorized to modify this policy for any employee or to make any representations to employees or 
applicants concerning the terms or conditions of employment with the School that are not consistent 
with the School’s policy regarding “at will” employment. 
 
This policy shall not be modified by any statements contained in this Handbook or employee 
applications, School memoranda, or any other materials provided to employees in connection with 
their employment. Further, none of those documents whether singly or combined, or any employment 
practices shall create neither an express or implied contract of employment for a definite period, nor 
an express or implied contract concerning any terms or conditions of employment. 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY IS OUR POLICY 

The School is an equal opportunity employer. It is the policy of the School to afford equal employment 
and advancement opportunity to all qualified individuals without regard to race, creed, color, religion, 
national origin, ancestry, sex, sexual orientation, age, physical or mental disability, marital status, 
citizenship status, medical condition, or any other legally protected status. This policy extends to all 
employees and to all aspects of the employment relationship, including the hiring of new employees 
and the training, transfer, promotion, compensation and benefits of existing employees. 
 
To comply with applicable laws ensuring equal employment opportunities to qualified individuals with 
a disability, the School will make reasonable accommodations for the known physical or mental 
limitations of an otherwise qualified individual with a disability who is an applicant or an employee 
unless undue hardship would result. 
 
Any applicant or employee who requires an accommodation in order to perform the essential 
functions of the job should contact a School representative with day-to-day personnel responsibilities 
and request such an accommodation. The individual with the disability should specify what 
accommodation he or she needs to perform the job. The School then will conduct an investigation to 
identify the barriers that interfere with the equal opportunity of the applicant or employee to perform 
his or her job. The School will identify possible accommodations, if any, that will help eliminate the 

55 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

3 
 

limitation. If the accommodation is reasonable and will not impose an undue hardship, the School will 
make the accommodation. 

CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECKS 

As required by law, all individuals working or volunteering at the School will be required to submit to a 
background criminal investigation. No condition or activity will be permitted that may compromise the 
School’s commitment that the safety and the well-being of students takes precedence over all other 
considerations. Conditions that preclude working at the School include conviction of a controlled 
substance or sex offense, or a serious or violent felony. Additionally, should an employee, during 
his/her employment with the School, be convicted of a controlled substance or sex offense, or serious 
or violent felony, the employee must immediately report such a conviction to the School Director. See 
Appendix A for more information about Criminal Background Checks. 

TUBERCULOSIS TESTING 

All employees of the School must submit written proof from a physician of an examination for 
tuberculosis (TB) within the last sixty (60) days showing that they are free of active TB. The 
examination for tuberculosis consists of an approved TB test, which, if positive, will be followed by an 
x-ray of the lungs, or in the absence of skin testing, an x-ray of the lungs. All employees will be 
required to undergo TB examination at least once every four (4) years. Volunteers may be required to 
undergo a TB examination as necessary. TB examination is a condition of initial employment with the 
School and the cost of the exam will be borne by the applicant. Food handlers will be required to have 
annual TB exams. 
 
Documentation of employee and volunteer compliance with TB exams will be kept on file in the office. 
This requirement also includes contract food handlers, substitute teachers, and student teachers 
serving under the supervision of an educator. Any entity providing student services to the School will 
be contractually required to ensure that all contract workers have had TB testing that shows them to 
be free of active TB prior to conducting work with School students. 

STAFF CLASSIFICATION 

The School Director or designee, approved by the Board of Directors, makes employee 
appointments. It is the intent of Walden to clarify the definition of employment classification so that 
employees understand their employment status and benefit eligibility. These classifications do not 
guarantee employment for any specified period of time.  

Each employee is designated as either Non-Exempt or Exempt from federal and state wage and hour 
laws.  

 

 

56 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

4 
 

 

Exempt Employees

Exempt employees are employees compensated for the performance of a job instead of by the hours 
worked, and therefore are not paid overtime for hours in excess of 8 hours in a work day. Exempt 
employees are not covered by the minimum wage and overtime provisions of the Fair Labor 
Standards Act (FLSA) or similar state wage and hour laws.  

:  

Non-Exempt Hourly Employees

Non-exempt hourly employees are paid for time worked and are eligible for overtime pay according to 
the law of the state in which they work. Non-exempt employees are covered by the minimum wage 
and overtime provisions of the FLSA and applicable state laws.  

:  

 

Regular-Full time employees are those hourly (classified) employees working no less than 40 hours 
per week or full-time teachers (certificated). Regular-Full time employees are eligible for health 
benefits to be paid by Walden, subject to any caps. If benefits exceed the cap, the employee will be 
responsible to pay the difference through payroll deductions.  

Regular-Part Time employees are those hourly (classified) employees or part-time teachers 
(certificated) working less than 40 hours per week. Regular-Part Time employees who work 30 hours 
or more per week are eligible for health benefits paid by Walden at a prorated amount. The employee 
must pay the balance if he or she desires coverage. This share will be deducted automatically from 
the employee’s payroll check once the employee has signed a payroll deduction agreement.  
 
“Substitutes” are employees who work on an hourly basis and on call basis to fill a temporary need.  

CERTIFICATION - TEACHING STAFF  

Walden’s teachers are required to hold a current California Commission on Teacher Credentialing 
certificate, permit, or other document equivalent to that which a teacher in other public schools would 
be required to hold. Walden intends to comply with the federal No Child Left Behind Act as applicable 
to the School and will seek to hire certificated employees that hold a Cross-cultural, Language and 
Academic Development (CLAD) certification.  

CLASSIFIED STAFF, SUBSTITUTES, AND CONSULTANTS  

Walden’s classified, other teaching and non-teaching staff, substitutes, and consultants will 
demonstrate the abilities necessary to effectively carry out their responsibilities as further specified in 
applicable job specifications. 
 
  

57 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

5 
 

SECTION 2: EMPLOYMENT STANDARDS  

Employees are required to adhere to the requirements for employment described in the Walden 
Academy Charter Petition, Walden Academy Board Policies & Administrative Procedures, this 
Employee Handbook, any applicable employment contract, and any applicable state and federal laws.  

EMPLOYEE CODE OF CONDUCT  

Employees are expected to conduct themselves at all times in a manner consistent with the highest 
standards of personal character and professionalism, with children, parents, prospective parents, co-
workers and the community.  

Attitudes are the most important facet of each employee’s presentation of the School to the public. 
We must be courteous, tactful, and pleasant at all times, treating the most unpleasant people as well 
as we treat out most pleasant ones. No staff member is expected to take abuse from anyone. 
Abusive treatment should be referred to the School Director immediately.  

EMPLOYEE DISHONESTY  

While the Charter School is an at-will employer and as such, no cause need be provided to support a 
release from employment, employee dishonesty will not be tolerated. Specifically, employee 
dishonesty has the potential to be the most costly crime loss category facing an organization. To 
effectively control employee theft losses, the emphasis must be on preventing the losses from 
happening rather than reducing the amounts of the losses. To this end, the School will conduct full 
background checks on all employees to avoid hiring employees with the propensity for, or history of, 
dishonesty.  

Some employees genuinely do not know what constitutes employee dishonesty. Employee 
dishonesty can range from an employee pilfering office supplies for personal use to a financial officer 
stealing millions through elaborate accounting frauds. The following activities are a partial list of 
actions that constitute employee dishonesty:  

• Forgery. Signing school checks or endorsing a School check for personal use.  

• Pilfering office supplies and converting them to personal use.  

• Embezzlement. Conversion of school funds for personal use. This can range from using petty 
cash for personal use to complicated purchasing/billing/payables or human resource creation-
of-fictitious- employees scams involving thousands of dollars.  

• Abusing the School’s sick leave policies to obtain personal time off while not ill or injured.  

• Abusing the School’s time clock policies by having someone clock in or out for you.  

• Over billing expense accounts.  

• Charging personal expenses on Walden credit cards.  

Employees are encouraged to report suspicions or proof of employee dishonesty by others to the 
School Director and/or the Board of Directors. Investigations of such matters will be handled 
discretely but thoroughly. Dishonest employees, regardless of the amount involved, can be 
prosecuted for criminal offense as well.  

58 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

6 
 

ANTI-HARASSMENT  

In order to provide a productive and pleasant working environment, it is important that we at Walden 
Academy maintain an atmosphere characterized by mutual respect. Accordingly, harassment in the 
workplace by co-workers or third parties will not be tolerated.  
 
In general, harassment includes verbal, physical, and visual harassment; retaliation and creating or 
maintaining an intimidating or hostile work environment. Walden prohibits all types of harassment 
which is based on race, color, national origin, sex, political affiliation, ancestry, age, religion, creed, 
sex, sexual orientation, medical condition, physical or mental disability, marital status, citizenship 
status, military service status, or other basis protected by law. Employees, Students, Parents, 
Families & all who visit Walden will comply with these standards of conduct. The School will promptly 
and thoroughly investigate any complaint of harassment and take appropriate corrective action, if 
warranted. 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT  

The Walden Academy Board of Directors affirms as its policy that sexual harassment of or by any 
employee shall not be tolerated. The Board considers sexual harassment to be a major offense which 
may result in disciplinary action up to and including dismissal of the offending employee.  

Every employee has a right to a work environment that is free from all types of unlawful 
discrimination, including sexual harassment. Prompt, appropriate action may help to avoid, or at least 
minimize, the incidence of sexual harassment. Supervisors are responsible to ensure that unlawful 
discrimination, including sexual harassment, does not occur in the program(s) for which they are 
responsible. Therefore, they are responsible to ensure that employees are aware of the Board’s 
policy.  
 
Orientation programs and annual training of employees shall:  

1. Communicate that sexual harassment will not be tolerated and that those engaging in such 
harassment will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal.  

2. Inform employees of the proper channels for raising complaints or concerns about 
harassment.  

3. Make clear that it is the Board’s intent that allegations of sexual harassment be thoroughly 
investigated, with sensitivity towards the alleged victim and the alleged harasser, and in a 
manner that protects the right to confidentiality of all persons involved. 

Sexual harassment consist of sexual advances, request for sexual favors and other verbal or physical 
conduct of a sexual nature when: (1) submission of the conduct is either made explicitly or implicitly a 
term or condition of an individual’s employment; (2) an employment decision is based upon an 
individual’s acceptance or rejection of that conduct; (3) that conduct interferes with an individual’s 
work performance or creates an intimidating, hostile or offensive working environment. 

Each employee has the responsibility to maintain a workplace free from any form of sexual 
harassment. Consequently, should any individual, in particular those with supervisory responsibilities, 
become aware of any conduct that may constitute sexual harassment or other prohibited behavior, 
immediate action should be taken to address such conduct. Employees and students are expected to 

59 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

7 
 

act in a positive and professional manner and to contribute to a productive School environment that is 
free from harassing or disruptive activity. Any employee who believes they have been sexually 
harassed or has witnessed sexual harassment is encouraged to immediately report such harassment 
to the School Director. See Appendix B for the “Harassment Complaint Form.” See Appendix C for 
the general “Complaint Form.” 

It is unlawful to retaliate in any way against an employee who has articulated a good faith concern 
about sexual harassment against him or her against another individual. Complainants and witnesses 
under these policies will be protected from further harassment and will not be retaliated against in any 
aspect of their employment due to their participation, filing of a complaint or reporting sexual 
harassment. 
 
The School will investigate complaints promptly and provide a written report of the investigation and 
decision as soon as practicable. The investigation will be handled in as confidential a manner as 
possible consistent with a full, fair, and proper investigation. While in most situations a personal 
relationship is a private matter, these relationships are not appropriate in a professional setting, 
particularly where one of the parties has management or supervisory responsibilities. 

ATTENDANCE AND PUNCTUALITY  

The students and families of Walden Academy count on the attendance and punctuality of Walden 
employees. These are important qualities necessary for success of the School. Employees are 
expected to work their full scheduled work day unless otherwise agreed upon between the employee 
and his/her supervisor. If an employee anticipates a need for time off, the employee should request 
leave time from his/her supervisor as soon as possible.  

Being late without advance permission for two (2) or more days in a two (2) month period is 
considered excessive. It is the employee’s responsibility to notify an administrator if the employee will 
be late, even if it is a few minutes. Supervision of students and course material will need to be 
covered. Frequent absence or tardiness decreases the employee’s effectiveness on the job, effects 
morale and decreases co-workers’ job efficiency since they must cover for an absent or tardy 
employee. Tardiness and excessive absenteeism may result in disciplinary action, up to and including 
termination of employment.  

If a non-exempt employee is late for reporting to work, the employee’s supervisor may, at his or her 
discretion, arrange for the employee to make up the time lost.  

Any employee who is unable to report for work must notify office staff as soon as possible before the 
start of each scheduled workday that they will be out. The School Director must approve 
arrangements for long-term substitutes.  

If an employee fails to report to work for three (3) days or more without notification to the School, 
Walden Academy may consider that that employee has abandoned his or her employment and has 
voluntarily terminated the employment. This provision does not create any contractual relationship 
between Walden and its employees, and Walden Academy further reserves its right to terminate an 
employee at will at any time, with or without cause.  

60 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

8 
 

If an employee is absent for medical reasons for more than five (5) working days, the employee must, 
on return, provide the School with a physician’s statement certifying the medical basis for the 
absence and stating that the employee is able to return to work.  

DRUG, ALCOHOL, VIOLENCE AND SMOKE-FREE ENVIRONMENT  

Walden Academy is committed to providing an environment free of drugs, alcohol, violence, or 
tobacco in order to promote a safe environment that is conducive to maintaining good health and high 
standards of learning.  

Bringing onto school premises, possessing, using, or being under the influence of intoxicating 
beverages or drugs while on school premises or at any school-sanctioned activity is prohibited and 
will result in disciplinary action. Walden Academy makes no allowance for violation of school policies 
regarding violence, drugs, alcohol, and smoking. Employees violating any of these policies will be 
subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination.  

Smoking is prohibited on school premises.  

ITEMS PROHIBITED AT SCHOOL  

State law expressly prohibits explosives, knives, firearms, or imitation firearms, weapons or other 
dangerous objects, tobacco, alcohol, and other controlled substances from school grounds, including 
vehicles parked on school premises. Possession of any of these items will lead to disciplinary action, 
up to and including termination.  

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION - REGARDING STUDENTS  

All information relating to students including, names, addresses, contact numbers, and progress 
information is confidential information, and may not be shared with unauthorized parties. All records 
concerning special education pupils shall be kept strictly confidential and maintained in separate files.  

Please note

CONFLICT OF INTEREST  

: The release of unauthorized confidential information may result in immediate 
dismissal and the filing of criminal charges. When in doubt, check with an administrator before 
releasing information. 

Employees are obligated to conduct business within guidelines that prohibit actual or potential conflict 
of interest, as defined by Walden policy. Such a conflict occurs when an employee is in a position to 
influence a decision that may result in a personal gain for the employee or for a relative as a result of 
Walden’s business dealings. For purposes of this policy, a relative is any person who is related by 
blood, adoption, or marriage.  

61 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

9 
 

No “presumption of guilt” is created by the mere existence of a relationship with outside firms; 
however, if such employees have any influence on transactions involving purchases, contracts, or 
leases, it is imperative that such be disclosed so that safeguards can be established to protect all 
parties.  

CHILD NEGLECT AND ABUSE REPORTING  

The Walden Academy Board recognizes the importance of protecting the total well-being and safety 
of each student. The Board affirms its position by supporting the regulations of the California Penal 
Code and the California Education Code, which define the requirement of Walden employees to be 
trained annually in child abuse identification and reporting.  
 
Any employee who knows or reasonably suspects a child has been the victim of child abuse or 
neglect is required to report the instance to a child protective agency. Child abuse is broadly defined 
as “a physical injury that is inflicted by other that accidental means on a child by another person.” 
School employees are required to report instances of child abuse when the employee has a 
“reasonable suspicion” that child abuse has occurred. Reasonable suspicion arises when the facts 
surrounding the incident or suspicion could cause another person in the same situation to suspect 
child abuse.  

Certificated employees and classified employees trained in child abuse identification and reporting 
shall report known or suspected child abuse to a child protective agency by telephone immediately or 
as soon as practically possible and in writing within thirty-six (36) hours of the telephone report. The 
reporting duties are individual and cannot be delegated to another individual. (Penal Code 11166)  

WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY  

The School requires its directors, officers, employees, and volunteers to observe high standards of 
ethics in the conduct of their duties and responsibilities within the School. As representatives of the 
School, such individuals must practice honesty and integrity in fulfilling all responsibilities and must 
comply with all applicable laws and regulations. The purpose of this policy is to create an ethical and 
open work environment, to ensure that the School has a governance and accountability structure that 
supports its mission, and to encourage and enable directors, officers, employees, and volunteers of 
the School to raise serious concerns about the occurrence of illegal or unethical actions within the 
School before turning to outside parties for resolution. All directors, officers, employees, and 
volunteers of the School have a responsibility to report any action or suspected action taken within 
the School that is illegal, unethical or violates any adopted policy of the School. Anyone reporting a 
violation must act in good faith, without malice to the School or any individual at the School and have 
reasonable grounds for believing that the information shared in the report indicates that a violation 
has occurred. A person who makes a report does not have to prove that a violation has occurred. 
However, any report which the reporter has made maliciously or any report which the reporter has 
good reason to believe is false will be viewed as a serious disciplinary offense. No one who in good 
faith reports a violation, or who, in good faith, cooperates in the investigation of a violation shall suffer 
harassment, retaliation, or adverse employment action. 

62 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

10 
 

PERSONAL APPEARANCE  

Personal appearance of employees shall be one that emanates pride and professionalism to 
correspond with the position held. Neatness and cleanliness are absolutely necessary at all times. 
Walden employees should at minimum adhere to the Dress Code set forth for Walden students in the 
Walden Academy Family Handbook. Walden’s professional image, as well as its atmosphere is 
maintained, in part, by the image that each employee presents to students and parents. If employees 
have any questions about what constitutes proper attire within the classroom, please consult with the 
School Director or designee. 
  

63 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

11 
 

SECTION 3: EMPLOYEE WAGES AND HOURS  

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT  

Unless specifically indicated in an employment agreement, all employment at Walden Academy is at-
will. At-will employees and the employer have the right to terminate employment at any time, with or 
without advance notice, and with or without cause. Individual job descriptions and compensation are 
specified in the Employment Agreement.  

Employees may also be demoted or disciplined and the terms of their employment may be altered at 
any time, with or without cause, at the discretion of Walden Academy. Walden reserves the right to 
decrease or eliminate an employee’s salary, hours or work year based upon, among other things, 
program demand, change in program direction, restructuring, or if it is deemed to be in the best 
interest of the program by the School Director and ratified by the Board of Directors.  
Employees may be given employment for a specified term based on the discretion of Walden 
Academy. However, such term and conditions of that employment relationship shall be specifically 
enumerated in a contract for employment.  

OVERTIME PAY  

Employees who work in hourly positions, which are subject to overtime pay, will be compensated for 
overtime work consistent with all applicable state and federal laws. Overtime work must have prior 
approval by the School Director, or designee and submitted on an extra hourly timesheet on the last 
day of the month.  

COMPENSATORY TIME  

Compensatory time off may be authorized by the School Director should the classified employee 
mutually agree to utilize compensatory time off in lieu of time worked as overtime. The classified 
employee and his/her supervisor shall mutually agree as to when the compensatory time will be 
utilized. This shall be recorded and available for review by the employee. Such compensatory time 
shall be paid at the rate of time-and-one-half for each hour of overtime.  

Compensatory time off may be used with 48 hours advance supervisory approval except that no 
approval may be given if use will result in requiring other personnel to work on a relief overtime basis. 
Compensatory time earned shall not exceed a cap of 20 hours in a school year. Compensatory time 
is to be utilized within the school year in which it is earned. In the event that compensatory time 
cannot be scheduled within the school year, the employee shall be paid the compensatory time off in 
June of each year.  

 

64 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

12 
 

HOLIDAYS  

The following ten days designated below are observed as paid holidays for regular full-time and 
regular part-time employees:  

New Year's Day     Labor Day  
Martin Luther King’s Birthday   Veteran’s Day  
President’s Day      Thanksgiving  
Memorial Day     Day after Thanksgiving    
Independence Day   Christmas Day 
 

When a holiday falls on Sunday, the next day, Monday is observed as a holiday. When a holiday falls 
on Saturday, the preceding Friday will be observed as a holiday.  

These holidays may not be accrued by an employee.  

To be eligible for holiday pay, employee must be regularly scheduled to work on the day on which the 
holiday falls, and the employee must have been on pay status both before and after each holiday.  

When a classified employee is “required” to work on any of the above legal or local holidays, he/she 
shall be paid compensation or given compensatory time, for such work in addition to the regular pay 
received for the holiday, at the rate of one and one-half (1-1/2) time his/her regular rate of pay. The 
employee shall have the option of selecting the form of holiday compensation.  

WORK SCHEDULE  

Employees are to work in accordance with the work schedule determined by the position and school 
calendar. Teachers are expected to work all school calendar days. Teachers will also be requested to 
meet additional days as determined by the School Director to meet the program needs of Walden 
Academy. Walden Academy requires that all staff allow enough time on campus to meet the need of 
students, parents and peers before and after school hours. Classified full-time employees are to work 
eight (8) hours per day and forty (40) hours per week. 
 
Employees must attend annual trainings, including Health & Safety Protocol training and annual in-
service, scheduled by the School Director during the year.  
 
Employees must attend all staff meetings during the year. Absences must be arranged ahead of time 
with the School Director or designee.  

 PARTICIPATION IN AFTER-HOURS PROGRAMS  

Teachers are required to participate in Walden Academy programs, which may be held outside 
school hours. These include staff meetings, parent-teacher-student conferences, parent meetings, 
community meetings, certain Board of Directors meetings, trainings, back-to-school night, open 
house, student camps, or others as directed by the School Director. Teachers will support and 
participate in field trips, workshops and other learning activities that include students on their 
caseload.  

65 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

13 
 

REGULAR EARLY RELEASE DAY  

The primary purpose of the “early release day” is to enable the teaching staff to improve coordination 
and communication with staff members and to accomplish necessary tasks. Examples of appropriate 
activities include, but are not limited to the following: record keeping, lesson planning and preparation, 
staff or parent communication, bulletin board preparation, and communication with special service 
personnel. Wednesday early release are specifically for collaboration with other staff members, grade 
level meetings, and school wide staff meetings. The school may schedule other shortened days as 
needed.  

MEAL & REST PERIODS  

Teachers shall have a regular forty (40) minute free lunch period each day. However, on days of 
inclement weather, the uninterrupted, duty free period shall be no less than thirty (30) minutes. Full-
time classified employees shall have a lunch period of no less than one-half (1/2) hour. Each 
employee shall receive a fifteen (15) minute paid break after 3 1/2 hours of consecutive service. Rest 
periods are not cumulative and can’t be used to extend a lunch period or to leave work early.  

PAYROLL  

Employees are paid monthly. If a check issue date falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or a legal holiday, 
paychecks will be issued on the last working day prior.  

All federal, state, and social security taxes, if applicable, will be automatically deducted from 
paychecks. Federal Withholding Tax deduction is determined by the employee’s W-4 form. The W-4 
form should be completed upon hire and it is the employee's responsibility to report any changes in 
filing status to Walden Academy and to fill out a new W-4 form.  

Federal and state law requires Walden Academy to withhold the following taxes from an employee’s 
wages:  

1. Federal Income Tax Withholding: The amount varies with the number of exemptions the 
employee claims and, of course, the gross pay amount.  

2. State Income Tax Withholding: The same factors, which apply to federal withholdings, apply to 
state withholdings.  

3. FICA: The Federal Insurance Contribution Act, Social Security, (listed on the paycheck as 
FICA) requires that a certain percentage of employee earnings be deducted and forwarded to 
the federal government, together with an equal amount contributed by Walden Academy.  

4. Medicare Taxes: These taxes are withheld every month and, as with all other taxes, the 
cumulative amount paid will be listed on the employee’s Pay Statement.  

 

Additional, payroll deductions will include employee contributions to retirement accounts and 
additional medical premiums as designated by the employee.  

66 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

14 
 

At the end of the calendar year, a “withholding statement” (W-2) will be prepared and forwarded to 
each employee for use in connection with preparation of income tax returns. The W-2 shows Social 
Security information, taxes withheld and total wages.  

Pay corrections: While all reasonable precautions are taken to ensure that each employee receives 
the correct amount of pay, errors can and do occur. In this unlikely event, the discrepancy should be 
brought to the attention of the appropriate administrator as soon as possible so that the situation can 
be reviewed and corrections can be made in a timely manner.  

All payroll information is confidential and only the Business Services Provider, School Director, and 
CFO have access to this information. Only the School Director or CFO may acknowledge dates of 
employment, position, salary and wage information regarding employees for the purposes of credit 
checks, purchase of homes, etc.  
 
 
 
   

67 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

15 
 

SECTION 4: HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS  

HEALTH BENEFITS  

Walden Academy will pay a portion of health insurance premiums for current full-time employees and their 
dependents. If the employee elects medical, dental, and vision benefits, then Walden Academy will contribute 
$100 per month for medical, 75% of the cost of the employee’s dental, not dependent, and 100% of the cost of 
the employee’s vision premiums. For employees, taking only dental and/or vision, Walden Academy will 
contribute up to a cap of $1,200 per year. The employee share of medical, dental, and vision premiums will be 
deducted from the employee’s payroll.  

The Health Insurance anniversary date at Walden Academy is October 1. Employees who do not elect health 
plan coverage when initially eligible will have the opportunity to enroll during the next open enrollment period 
with an effective health coverage date of October 1 anniversary date.  

No staff member will receive paid health benefits following separation from employment. However, employees 
will be notified when their paid benefits will terminate and that they have the option of continued coverage at 
their own cost through COBRA.  

RETIREMENT BENEFITS  

All employees that work for Walden Academy will be eligible to participate in a 403(b) retirement plan through 
Vanguard. For those employees who work over thirty (30) hours per week, Walden Academy will match the 
first 5% of the employee’s salary contributed to the 403(b) plan. Any stipends or bonuses will be excluded from 
the calculation of Walden’s matching contribution. 

 
 
  

68 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

16 
 

SECTION 5: LEAVE  

PAID TIME OFF LEAVE  

Walden Academy recognizes that employees will need time off for medical and dental appointments, 
personal business, personal days and illness during the school year. With this in mind, each full-time 
employee will be entitled to one (1.00) days of PTO for each month in a paid status up to a maximum 
of eleven (11) PTO days per year. PTO will be prorated for part-time certificated employees, who 
work over 28 hours per week, on a proportionate basis based upon the hourly assignment of the 
employee when compared to a full-time employee.  

Leave can accrue up to a maximum of twenty-two (22) days of pay. Once this cap is reached, no 
further leave will accrue until some accrued leave is used. When some accrued leave is used, 
accrued leave compensation will begin to accrue again. There is no retroactive grant of leave 
compensation for the period of time the accrued leave compensation was at the cap.  

Regular full-time and part-time employees, who work over 30 hours per week, will be eligible for Paid 
Time Off leave (PTO) according to the following provision.  

1. Employees who work or who are in a paid status one-half (1/2) or more of the work days 
in any month shall receive PTO credit for that month.  

2. Employees may carry over his/her unused accumulated PTO beyond the year in which 
it was earned into the second fiscal year. PTO excess carried over into the second fiscal 
year must be taken by June 30 of that year or will be paid to the employee at the end of 
June of that year.  

3. When a holiday falls during the scheduled PTO of any employee, the holiday shall not 
count as a PTO day.  

4. All PTO requests must be in writing on the School’s “Request for Leave” form, 
submitted to the employee’s supervisor for approval. Approval will be based on Walden 
Academy operational needs and the burden placed on the School’s work force. PTO 
shall be scheduled so as to fit into the normal work flow of the School.  

5. Regular employees separating are entitled to payment of accumulated PTO at the time 
of separation. The accumulated PTO is added to the normal wages earned.  

6. If the employee is absent for five (5) or more consecutive days due to illness, medical 
evidence of the illness and or medical certification of fitness to return to work 
satisfactory to WA will be required. 

BEREAVEMENT LEAVE  

Walden Academy recognizes that the loss of a loved one can be both traumatic and painful, and that 
there may be a need to attend to important personal matters. All regular full-time and part-time 
employees shall be entitled to (3) days leave of absence for the death of any member of his/her 
immediate family. Member of the immediate family is defined to mean husband, wife, grandparent, 
father, mother, brother, sister, child, grandchild, father-in-law, mother-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-
law, brother or sister-in-law, foster parent or foster child, or any relative living in the immediate 
household of the employee or any person standing in loco parentis. Bereavement leave is not 
considered hours worked for purposes of calculating overtime pay.  

69 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

17 
 

 

STATE DISABILITY INSURANCE  

Certificated and Classified employees are eligible for SDI benefits. Benefits are provided due to non-
work related disability. This program is administered by the State of California.  

INDUSTRIAL INJURY LEAVE (WORKERS’ COMPENSATION)  

In accordance with state law, Walden Academy provides workers’ compensation benefits to 
employees who sustain on the job injuries which occur from conduct which arises out of and in the 
course of employment with Walden Academy.  

The workers’ compensation benefits that may be provided to an employee include the following:  

1. Medical care to cure and relieve the effects of the work-related injury;  
2. Temporary disability indemnity for lost wages;  
3. Permanent disability indemnity if an employee becomes permanently disabled;  
4. Nontransferable job displacement voucher for a state approved/accredited school if the  

employee cannot return to his/her usual and customary occupation with Walden.  
 

To ensure that the employee receives all workers’ compensation benefits to which he or she may be 
entitled, the employee will need to: (1) immediately report any work-related injury to the School 
Director or designee, (2) seek medical treatment and follow-up care if required, (3) complete a written 
Employee’s Claim Form and return it to the main office, and (4) provide Walden with medical 
certification from the employee’s healthcare provider regarding the need for workers’ compensation 
disability leave and the employee’s ability to return to work from the leave.  

Allowable leave for each industrial accident or illness shall be for the number of days of temporary 
disability, but not to exceed the maximum working days allowed under Walden’s Worker’s 
Compensation Policy. Allowable leave shall not be accumulated from year to year. The leave shall 
commence on the first day of absence. Industrial accident or illness leave shall be reduced by one 
day for each day of authorized absence regardless of a temporary disability indemnity award.  

When an industrial accident or illness leave overlaps into the next fiscal year, the employee shall be 
entitled to only the amount of unused leave due him/her for the same illness or injury.  

Under most circumstances, upon submission of a medical certification that an employee is able to 
return to work from workers’ compensation leave, the employee will be reinstated to his/her same 
position held at the time the leave began or to an equivalent position if available. An employee 
returning from a workers' compensation leave has no greater right to reinstatement than if the 
employee had been continuously employed rather than on leave. If the employee’s same position is 
not available upon the employee’s return to work, an employee’s return to work will depend on job 
openings existing at the time of his or her scheduled return. Additionally, an employee’s return will 
depend on his or her qualifications for any existing openings.  

70 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

18 
 

If, after returning from workers’ compensation disability leave, an employee is unable to perform the 
essential functions of his or her job because of a physical or mental disability, Walden Academy 
obligations to the employee may include reasonable accommodation, as governed by applicable 
disability law.  

Employees who are injured in a work-related incident will be referred to a physician designated by 
Walden Academy for medical treatment unless, prior to a work-related injury, Walden Academy has 
received from the employee written notice that the employee wishes to be treated by his or her own 
physician.  

The Walden Academy designated physician for work-related injuries will treat employees who do not 
designate their own physician, for at least thirty (30) days. Employees may seek treatment from their 
own physician after thirty (30) days should they so desire.  

Any person who makes or causes to be made any knowingly false or fraudulent material statement or 
material misrepresentation for the purpose of obtaining or denying workers’ compensation benefits or 
payments is guilty of a felony. The law requires that Walden Academy notify its workers 
compensation carrier of any concerns of false or fraudulent claims.  

Walden Academy has a duty to report potential workers’ compensation fraud to their workers’ 
compensation insurance company. It is unlawful to make or present any knowingly false or fraudulent 
material statements for the purpose of obtaining any compensation. Fraud is punishable by 
imprisonment in county jail for one year, or in a state prison for two, three or five years, or by a fine 
not exceeding one hundred fifty thousand dollars ($150,000) or double the value of the fraud, 
whichever is greater, or by both that imprisonment and fine. Additional civil penalties may also be in 
order.  

FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE  

This policy explains how Walden Academy complies with the federal Family and Medical Leave Act 
(“FMLA”) and the California Family Rights Act (“CFRA”), both of which require Walden Academy to 
permit each eligible employee to take up to 12 workweeks of FMLA leave in any 12-month period for 
the birth or adoption of a child, the employee’s own serious illness or to care for certain family 
members who have a serious illness. For purposes of this policy, all leave taken under FMLA or 
CFRA will be referred to as “FMLA leave.”  

To be eligible for FMLA leave, the employee must have been employed by Walden Academy for the 
last 12 months and must have worked at least 1,250 hours during the 12-month period immediately 
preceding commencement of the FMLA leave.  

Employee Eligibility Criteria  

The 12-week FMLA allowance includes any time taken (without pay) for any of the following reasons:  

Events That May Entitle An Employee To FMLA Leave  

1. To care for the employee’s newborn child or a child placed with the employee for adoption or 
foster care. Leaves for this purpose must conclude 12 months after the birth, adoption, or 

71 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

19 
 

placement. If both parents are employed by Walden Academy, they will be entitled to a 
combined total of 12 weeks of leave for this purpose.  

2. Because of the employee’s own serious health condition (including a serious health condition 
resulting from an on-the-job illness or injury) that makes the employee unable to perform any 
one or more of the essential functions of his or her job (other than a disability caused by 
pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical conditions which is covered by Walden Academy’s 
separate pregnancy disability policy).  

3. To care for a spouse, child or parent with a serious health condition.  
4. A “serious health condition” is an illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental condition 

that involves: (1) inpatient care (i.e., an overnight stay) in a hospital, hospice, or residential 
medical care facility, including any period of incapacity or any subsequent treatment in 
connection with such inpatient care; or (2) continuing treatment by a health care provider.  

 

1. FMLA leave can be taken in one or more periods, but may not exceed 12 workweeks total for 
any purpose in any 12-month period, as described below, for any one, or combination of the 
above-described situations. “Twelve workweeks” means the equivalent of twelve of the 
employee’s normally scheduled workweeks. For a full-time employee who works five eight-
hour days per week, “twelve workweeks” means 60 working and/or paid eight-hour days.  

Amount of FMLA Leave Which May Be Taken  

 
2. The “12 month period” in which 12 weeks of FMLA leave may be taken is the 12 month period 

immediately preceding the commencement of any FMLA Leave. 
 

1. An employee on FMLA leave because of his or her own serious health condition 

Pay During FMLA Leave  

must 

2. An employee on FMLA leave for child care or to care for a spouse, parent, or child with a 
serious health condition 

use all 
accrued personal time off at the beginning of any otherwise unpaid FMLA leave period.  

may 

3. All FMLA leaves are unpaid leaves.  

use any or all accrued paid time off at the beginning of any 
otherwise unpaid FMLA leave.  

4. The receipt of personal time off pay, State Disability Insurance, or paid family leave benefits 
will not extend the length of the FMLA leave. Personal time off pay accrues only if the 
employee is in a paid status one-half or more of the work days in the month.  

 

The provisions of Walden Academy’s various employee benefit plans govern continuing eligibility 
during FMLA leave, and these provisions may change from time to time. The health benefits of 
employees on FMLA leave will be paid by Walden Academy during the leave at the same level and 
under the same conditions, as coverage would have been provided if the employee had been 
continuously employed during the leave period. When a request for FMLA leave is granted, Walden 
Academy will give the employee written confirmation of the arrangements made for the payment of 
insurance premiums during the leave period.  

Health Benefits  

72 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

20 
 

An employee on FMLA leave remains an employee and the leave will not constitute a break in 
service. An employee who returns from FMLA leave will return with the same amount of service time 
he or she had when the leave commenced.  

Service Time  

1. An employee requesting FMLA leave because of his or her own or a relative’s serious health 
condition must provide medical certification from the appropriate health care provider. Failure 
to provide the required certification in a timely manner (within 15 days of the leave request) 
may result in denial of the leave request until such certification is provided.  

Medical Certifications  

2. If Walden Academy has reason to doubt the medical certification supporting a leave because 
of the employee’s own serious health condition, Walden Academy may request a second 
opinion by a health care provider of its choice (paid for by Walden Academy). If the second 
opinion differs from the first one, Walden Academy will pay for a third, mutually agreeable, 
health care provider to provide a final and binding opinion.  

3. Recertification’s are required if leave is sought after expiration of the time estimated by the 
health care provider. Failure to submit required recertification’s can result in termination of the 
leave.  

 

1. An employee should request FMLA leave by completing a Request for Leave form, which can 
be obtained from Walden Academy, and submitting it to the School Director. An employee 
asking for a Request for Leave form will be given a copy of Walden Academy’s then-current 
FMLA leave policy.  

Procedures for Requesting and Scheduling FMLA Leave  

2. Employees should provide not less than 30 days notice or such notice as is practicable, for 
foreseeable childbirth, placement, or any planned medical treatment for the employee or 
his/her spouse, child, or parent. Failure to provide such notice is grounds for denial of a leave 
request, except if the need for FMLA leave was an emergency or was otherwise 
unforeseeable.  

3. Where possible, employees must make a reasonable effort to schedule foreseeable planned 
medical treatments so as not to unduly disrupt Walden Academy’s operations.  

4. If FMLA leave is taken because of the employee’s own serious health condition or the serious 
health condition of the employee's spouse, parent or child, the leave may be taken 
intermittently or on a reduced leave schedule when medically necessary as determined by the 
health care provider of the person with the serious health condition.  

5. If FMLA leave is taken because of the birth of the employee’s child or the placement of a child 
with the employee for adoption or foster care, the minimum duration of leave is two weeks, 
except that Walden Academy will grant a request for FMLA leave for this purpose of at least 
one day but less than two weeks’ duration on any two occasions.  

6. If an employee needs intermittent leave or leave on a reduced leave schedule that is 
foreseeable based on planned medical treatment for the employee or a family member, the 
employee may be transferred temporarily to an available alternative position for which he or 
she is qualified that has equivalent pay and benefits and that better accommodates recurring 
periods of leave then the employee's regular position.  

73 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

21 
 

7. In most cases, Walden Academy will respond to an FMLA leave request within two days of 
acquiring knowledge that the leave is being taken for an FMLA-qualifying reason and, in any 
event, within ten days of receiving the request. If an FMLA leave request is granted, Walden 
Academy will notify the employee in writing that the leave will be counted against the 
employee’s FMLA leave entitlement. This notice will explain the employee’s obligations and 
the consequences of failing to satisfy them.  

 

1. Upon timely return at the expiration of the FMLA leave period, an employee is entitled to the 
same or a comparable position with the same or similar duties and virtually identical pay, 
benefits, and other terms and conditions of employment 

Return to Work  

unless 

2. When a request for FMLA leave is granted to an employee, Walden Academy will give the 
employee a written guarantee of reinstatement at the termination of the leave (with the 
limitations explained above).  

the same position and any 
comparable position(s) have ceased to exist because of legitimate business reasons unrelated 
to the employee’s FMLA leave.  

3. Before an employee will be permitted to return from FMLA leave taken because of his or her 
own serious health condition, the employee must obtain a certification from his or her health 
care provider that he or she is able to resume work.  

4. If an employee can return to work with limitations, Walden Academy will evaluate those 
limitations and, if possible, will accommodate the employee as required by law. If 
accommodation cannot be made, the employee will be medically separated from Walden 
Academy.  

An employee on FMLA leave may not accept employment with any other employer without Walden 
Academy’s written permission. An employee who accepts such employment will be deemed to have 
resigned from employment at Walden Academy.  

Employment During Leave  

PREGNANCY DISABILITY LEAVE  

This policy explains how Walden Academy complies with the California Pregnancy Disability Act, 
which requires Walden Academy to give each female employee an unpaid leave of absence of up to 
four (4) months, as needed, for the period(s) of time a woman is actually disabled by pregnancy, 
childbirth, or related medical conditions.  

To be eligible for pregnancy disability leave, the employee must be actually disabled by pregnancy, 
childbirth, or a related medical condition and must provide appropriate medical certification 
concerning the disability.  

Employee Eligibility Criteria  

Events That May Entitle An Employee to Pregnancy Disability Leave  

74 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

22 
 

The four-month pregnancy disability leave allowance includes any time taken (with or without pay) for 
any of the following reasons:  

1. The employee is unable to work at all or is unable to perform any one or more of the essential 
functions of her job or is unable to perform any one or more of the essential functions of her 
job without undue risk to herself, the successful completion of her pregnancy, or to other 
persons because of pregnancy or childbirth, or because of any medically recognized physical 
or mental condition that is related to pregnancy or childbirth (including severe morning 
sickness); or  

2. The employee needs to take time off for pre-natal care.  
 

Pregnancy disability leave may be taken in one or more periods, but not to exceed four months total. 
“Four months” means the number of days the employee would normally work within four months. For 
a full-time employee who works five eight hour days per week, four months means 88 working and/or 
paid eight hour days of leave entitlement based on an average of 22 working days per month for four 
months. Pregnancy Disability Leave runs concurrently with FMLA leave. 

Duration Of Pregnancy Disability Leave  

1. An employee on Pregnancy Disability Leave 

Pay During Pregnancy Disability Leave  

must 

2. The receipt of personal time off pay or disability insurance benefits will not extend the length of 
pregnancy disability leave.  

use all accrued personal time off at the 
beginning of any otherwise unpaid leave period.  

3. Personal time off pay accrues during any period of unpaid pregnancy disability leave only until 
the end of the month in which the unpaid leave began.  

 

The provisions of Walden Academy’s various employee benefit plans govern continued eligibility 
during Pregnancy Disability Leave and these provisions may change from time to time. When a 
request for Pregnancy Disability Leave is granted, Walden Academy will give the employee written 
confirmation of the arrangements made for the payment of insurance premiums during the leave 
period.  

Health Benefits  

An employee on Pregnancy Disability Leave remains an employee of Walden Academy and a leave 
will not constitute a break in service. When an employee returns from Pregnancy Disability Leave, 
she will return with the same amount of service time they had when the leave commenced.  

Service Time  

1. An employee requesting Pregnancy Disability Leave must provide medical certification from 
her healthcare provider. Failure to provide the required certification in a timely manner (within 
fifteen (15) days of the leave request) may result in a denial of the leave request until such 
certification is provided.  

Medical Certifications  

75 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

23 
 

2. Recertification's are required if leave is sought after expiration of the time estimated by the 
healthcare provider. Failure to submit required recertification’s can result in termination of the 
leave.  

1. An employee should request Pregnancy Disability Leave by completing a Request for Leave 
form and submitting it to her supervisor. An employee asking for a Request for Leave form will 
be referred to Walden Academy’s then-current Pregnancy Disability Leave policy.  

Requesting And Scheduling Pregnancy Disability Leave  

2. Employee should provide not less than thirty (30) days notice, as practicable, if the need for 
the leave is foreseeable. Failure to provide such notice is grounds for denial of the leave 
request, except if the need for pregnancy disability leave was an emergency and was 
otherwise unforeseeable.  

3. Where possible, employees must make a reasonable effort to schedule foreseeable planned 
medical treatments so as not to unduly disrupt Walden Academy’s operations.  

4. Pregnancy Disability Leave may be taken intermittently or on a reduced leave schedule when 
medically advisable, as determined by the employee’s healthcare provider.  

5. If an employee needs intermittent leave or leave on a reduced leave schedule that is 
foreseeable based on planned medical treatment the employee may be transferred temporarily 
to an available alternative position for which he or she is qualified that has equivalent pay and 
benefits that better accommodates recurring periods of leave than the employee’s regular 
position.  

6. In most cases, Walden Academy will respond to a Pregnancy Disability Leave request within 
two (2) days of acquiring knowledge that the leave qualifies as pregnancy disability and, in any 
event, within ten (10) days of receiving the request. If a Pregnancy Disability Leave request is 
granted, Walden Academy will notify the employee in writing and leave will be counted against 
the employee’s Pregnancy Disability Leave entitlement. This notice will explain the employee's 
obligations and the consequences of failing to satisfy them.  

1. Upon timely return at the expiration of the pregnancy disability leave period, an employee is 
entitled to the same position 

Return To Work  

unless the employee would not otherwise have been employed in 
the same position (at the time reinstatement is requested) or such each means of preserving 
the job for the employee (such as leaving it unfilled or filling it with a temporary employee) 
would have substantially undermined Walden Academy’s ability to operate the business safely 
and efficiently. If the employee is not reinstated to the same position, she must be reinstated to 
a comparable position unless there is no comparable position available or 

2. When a request for Pregnancy Disability Leave is granted to an employee, Walden Academy 
will give the employee a written guarantee of reinstatement at the end of the leave (with the 
limitations explained above).  

a comparable 
position is available, but filling that position with the returning employee would substantially 
undermine Walden Academy’s ability to operate the business safely and efficiently. A 
“comparable” position is a position that involves the same or similar duties and responsibilities 
and is virtually identical to the employee’s original position in terms of pay, benefits, and 
working conditions.  

3. Before an employee will be permitted to return from a Pregnancy Disability Leave of three days 
or more, the employee must obtain a certification from her healthcare provider that she is able 
to resume work.  

76 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

24 
 

4. If the employee takes FMLA/CFRA leave for reason of the birth of her child at the expiration of 
her pregnancy disability leave, her right to reinstatement is governed by the Family Care and 
Medical Leave policy, not by this policy.  

5. If the employee can return to work with limitations, Walden Academy will evaluate those 
limitations and, if possible, will accommodate the employee as required by law. If 
accommodation cannot be made, the employee will be medically separated from Walden 
Academy.  

 

An employee on Pregnancy Disability Leave may not accept employment with any other employer 
without Walden Academy’s written permission. An employee who accepts such employment will be 
deemed to have resigned from employment with Walden Academy.  

Employment During Leave  

INSURANCE COVERAGE CONTINUANCE  

When employees are on extended leave, except under FMLA or PDL, Walden Academy does not 
continue the employee’s health insurance coverage. Insurance may be self-paid under COBRA 
provisions.  

MILITARY AND SPOUSAL LEAVE OF ABSENCE   

The School shall grant a military leave of absence to any employee who must be absent from work 
due to service in the uniformed services in accordance with the Uniformed Services Employment and 
Re-Employment Rights Act of 1994 (“USERRA”). All employees requesting military leave must 
provide advance written notice of the need for such leave, unless prevented from doing so by military 
necessity or if providing notice would be impossible or unreasonable. 

If military leave is for thirty (30) or fewer days, the School shall continue the employee’s health 
benefits. For service of more than thirty (30) days, employee shall be permitted to continue their 
health benefits at their option through COBRA. Employees are entitled to use accrued paid time off as 
wage replacement during time served, provided such paid time off accrued prior to the leave. 

The School will reinstate those employees returning from military leave to their same position or one 
of comparable seniority, status, and pay if they have a certificate of satisfactory completion of service 
and apply within ninety (90) days after release from active duty or within such extended period, if any, 
as required by law. Exceptions to this policy will occur wherever necessary to comply with applicable 
laws. 

The School shall grant up to ten (10) days of unpaid leave to employees who work more than twenty 
(20) hours per week and who are spouses of deployed military servicemen and servicewomen. The 
leave may be taken when the military spouse is on leave from deployment during a time of military 

77 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

25 
 

conflict. To be eligible for leave, an employee must provide the School with (1) notice of intention to 
take military spousal leave within two (2) business days of receiving official notice that the employee’s 
military spouse will be on leave from deployment, and (2) documentation certifying that the 
employee’s military spouse will be on leave from deployment during the time that the employee 
requests leave. 

JURY DUTY OR WITNESS LEAVE  

Upon notification by a court to report for jury duty, the employee should immediately request jury duty 
during non-school months. Any employee, when advised of his/her notification of jury duty, receipt of 
a subpoena to testify in court or appearance necessary in a domestic violence dispute must 
immediately inform the School Director. All non-exempt, hourly employees will be granted unpaid time 
off for jury duty and necessary court appearances.  

VOTING TIME OFF  

Generally, polling times have been set so there is ample time for voting before or after work.  

If an employee does not have sufficient time outside of working hours to vote in an official state-
sanctioned election, the employee may take off enough working time to vote. Such time off shall be 
taken at the beginning or the end of the regular working shift, whichever allows for more free time and 
the time taken off shall be combined with the voting time available outside of working hours to a 
maximum of two (2) hours combined.  
Under these circumstances, an employee will be allowed a maximum of two (2) hours of unpaid 
voting leave. When possible, an employee requesting time off to vote shall give the School Director, 
or designee at least two (2) days notice. 

RETURNING FROM LEAVE OF ABSENCE 

Employees cannot return from a medical leave of absence without first providing a sufficient doctor’s 
return to work authorization.  
 
When business considerations require, the job of an employee on leave may be filled by a temporary 
or regular replacement. An employee should give the School Director thirty (30) days notice before 
returning from leave. Whenever the School is notified of an employee’s intent to return from a leave, 
the School will attempt to place the employee in his former position or in a comparable position with 
regard to salary and other terms and conditions for which the employee is qualified. However, re-
employment cannot always be guaranteed. If you need further information regarding Leaves of 
Absence, be sure to consult the School Director. 

  

78 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

26 
 

SECTION 8: THE WORKPLACE  

RIGHT TO PRIVACY  

Employees should be aware that desks, computers, emails, internet activity sheets, PDA’s and other 
personal spaces provided by Walden Academy are School property, and are subject to search if 
necessary.  

PERSONNEL FILES AND RECORD KEEPING PROTOCOLS  

The School Director or his or her designee shall maintain a Confidential Personnel File for each 
employee. All information in personnel files is strictly confidential, as is all payroll information. Any 
employee who violates this confidentiality is subject to discipline including discharge.  

The Confidential Personnel file will contain all employment related documents, except Criminal 
Offender Record Information (CORI) related materials and the Employee’s I-9 Form. An employee will 
be provided a copy of all evaluation documents placed in his or her Confidential Personnel File.  

Employees must be given notice and opportunity to review and comment on information of a 
derogatory nature before it is entered or filed in the Confidential Personnel File with limited exceptions 
as provided by law.  

Confidential Personnel Files are protected from unauthorized disclosure to third parties unless in 
compliance with lawful subpoenas, court orders, or written employee authorization. In the case where 
an employee will not initial the document (to be placed in his or her Confidential Personnel File), the 
School Director shall make a notation on the document indicating that the employee has been given a 
copy of the document and has refused to initial the document.  

Employees have the right to inspect their Confidential Personnel Files at reasonable times and at 
reasonable intervals, but not at a time when the employee is required to render services to the 
School. With the exceptions noted below, all personnel records related to the employee's 
performance or to any grievance concerning the employee shall be made available for inspection by 
the employee. Non-credentialed employees shall have access to any numerical scores obtained as 
result of written examinations. (Education Code 44031)  

The School Director or designee shall not be required to make available to the employee: (Labor 
Code 1198.5; Education Code 44031)  
1. Records relating to the investigation of a possible criminal offense  
2. Letters of reference  
3. Ratings, reports or records that were obtained prior to the employee's employment, prepared by 

identifiable examination committee members, or obtained in connection with a promotional 
examination.  

The School Director or designee will respond to all reference check inquiries from other employers. 
Responses to such inquiries will be limited to factual information that can be substantiated by Walden 

79 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

27 
 

Academy’s written records. No other employment data, including wage information, will be released 
without written authorization and release signed by the individual who is the subject of the inquiry.  

Each employee is responsible to promptly notify Walden Academy of any changes in personnel data, 
such as personal mailing addresses, telephone numbers, number and names of dependents, 
individuals to be contacted in case of emergency, education accomplishments, and credential 
information. Any other such status reports should be accurate and current at all times.  

Employment applications will be kept on file for one year, after which time they will be destroyed. 
Applications of those hired become part of the personnel file of the employee.  

HEALTH AND SAFETY  

Each employee is expected to obey safety rules and to exercise caution in work activities. Any 
employee who notices a dangerous, or potentially dangerous, situation should report it to the main 
office immediately. We must view our environment with a view to safety for all, in particular for all the 
children.  

SCHOOL FACILITIES  

Employees are responsible to maintain a safe, neat and orderly school site. All employees are 
responsible for cleaning up after themselves at all times in Walden Academy facilities.  

Classrooms should be maintained in a neat, orderly fashion. It is the responsibility of the teacher to 
keep a close check of the condition of all desks and equipment in the room. Broken or faulty 
equipment should be reported to the office.  

The teacher should see that the desks in the classroom are kept free of debris, emptied and washed 
regularly. At the close of school all teachers are responsible to lock door and windows, turn off lights, 
lower thermostats. Teachers should also have students place their chairs on the top of their desks at 
the end of the day.  

ACCIDENT/INJURY INCIDENT REPORTING  

If an accident or injury occurs on school property, or while conducting Walden Academy business off 
site, it should be reported on an Incident Report form to be submitted to a supervisor within 24 hours 
from the time of the incident. As much information as is available at the time about the exact 
circumstances of the incident should be reported.  

USE OF WALDEN ACADEMY E-MAIL AND VOICEMAIL  

Walden Academy will permit employees to use its electronic mail and voicemail systems subject to 
the following:  

80 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

28 
 

1. Personal use at breaks or lunch hour.  
2. The e-mail system is not to be used in any way that may be disruptive, offensive to others, or 

harmful to morale. For example, sexually explicit images, ethnic slurs, racial epithets, or anything 
else that may be construed as harassment or disparagement of others based on their race, 
national origin, sex, sexual orientation, age, religious beliefs or political beliefs shall not be 
displayed or transmitted.  

3. Employees should not attempt to gain access to another employee’s personal file of e-mail or 
voicemail messages without the latter’s express permission.  

4. Walden Academy staff will not enter an employee’s personal e-mail files or voicemail unless there 
is a legitimate business need to do so. Walden Academy retains a copy of all passwords; 
passwords unknown to Walden Academy may not be used. System security features, including 
passwords and delete functions, do not neutralize Walden Academy’s ability to access any 
message at any time. Employees must be aware that the possibility of such access always exists.  

PHONE CALLS  

Personal telephone calls should be made and received during non-teaching times. Personal calling 
cards should be used for long distance personal calls. Such telephone calls should be kept as short 
as possible (e.g. 3 minutes or less). Walden Academy expects that cell phones will be turned on a 
silent/meeting answer mode while employees are on the job.  

  

81 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

29 
 

SECTION 9: DISCIPLINE AND TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT  

Since employment at Walden Academy (unless otherwise expressly specified) is at will, both the 
employee and Walden Academy have the right to terminate employment at will, with or without cause 
or advance notice.  

Our School’s rules of conduct are based on mutual respect, common courtesy, sound judgment, 
responsibility, professionalism and business accountability. Personal and professional integrity is, of 
course, expected of all employees. Without altering the at-will nature of the employment relationship, 
Walden Academy may terminate or suspend the employment of any employee or engage in any other 
disciplinary actions (e.g. suspension with or without pay, demotion, etc.), if the School Director 
determines that the employee has failed to fulfill his or her duties and responsibilities and/or has failed 
to demonstrate the responsibility outlined in these personnel policies and the job description or for 
any lawful reason.  

MISCONDUCT SUBJECT TO DISCIPLINE UP TO AND INCLUDING DISMISSAL  

The following violations are considered misconduct and will result in disciplinary action up to and 
including termination of employment. Since it is impossible to enumerate every act or omission, which 
would justify the imposition of disciplinary action, the list is not intended to be all-inclusive. The 
following do not affect an employee’s at-will employment. (All rules are subject to revisions by Walden 
Academy).  

• Unexcused absence and/or lack of punctuality.  

• Release of confidential information without authorization.  

• Possession of or reporting to work while under the influence of alcohol, narcotics, and/or other  
controlled substances.  

• Theft.  

• Willful destruction of property.  

• Conviction of a felony or conviction of a misdemeanor, which makes the employee unfit for the 
position.  

• Falsification, fraud, or omission of pertinent information when applying for a position.  

• Any willful act that endangers the safety, health or well-being of another individual.  

• Any act of sufficient magnitude to cause disruption of work or gross discredit to the School.  

• Misuse of School property or funds.  

• Possession of firearms, or any other weapon, while acting within the course of your 
employment with the School.  

• Acts of discrimination or illegal harassment based on gender, ethnicity, or any other basis 
protected by state or federal law.  

• Failure to comply with the School’s safety procedures.  

• Insubordination.  

• Failure to follow any known policy or procedure of Walden Academy, or gross negligence, 
which results in a loss to Walden Academy.  

• Violations of federal, state, or local laws affecting the organization or your employment with the  
organization.  

• Unacceptable job performance.  

• Dishonesty.  

82 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

30 
 

NON-DISCLOSURE OF PERSONNEL INFORMATION  

Reasons for involuntary terminations are privileged information and are treated confidentially. Anyone 
disclosing such information inappropriately is subject to disciplinary action, up to and including 
termination of employment.  

No one without a managerial “need to know” is to discuss personnel information.  

Inquiries regarding an employee who has been terminated, or otherwise left the employment of 
Walden Academy, should be referred to the School Director, or designee.  

RESIGNATION  

Employees are free to resign without repercussion or retaliation. Although Walden Academy does not 
require notice from a resigning employee, as employees are at-will unless otherwise agreed, Walden 
Academy would appreciate thirty (30) day notice. However, Walden Academy may ask an employee 
to leave immediately when necessary. Any accrued and unpaid compensation shall be provided as 
required under the law.  

SALARY AND BENEFITS IN THE EVENT OF TERMINATION  

In the event of termination of employment, employees shall be entitled only to the prorated salary and 
benefits earned through the last date of actual service or as specified in the employee’s employment 
contract. If you are participating in the medical and/or dental plan, you will be provided information on 
your rights under COBRA. 
  

83 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

31 
 

SECTION 10: DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCESS  

Misunderstandings and problems arise from time to time in any situation. Work situations can be 
stressful. To provide the best possible working conditions for employees, an honest and open 
atmosphere in which any problem, complaint, suggestion, or question receives a timely, respectful 
response is required. Employees and the administration should have, and display, mutual respect for 
each other at all times.  

These dispute resolution procedures serve to provide employees, who have a grievance concerning 
conditions of employment, with a procedure to have the concern or complaint heard first by the 
School Director and then the Hearing Panel appointed by the Walden Academy Board of Directors if 
satisfactory resolution is unattainable. In the event the grievance involves the School Director, the 
President of the Board of Directors will act in the same capacity as the School Director as described 
below.  

A “grievance” or “concern” is defined as any feeling of dissatisfaction or injustice in connection with 
one’s employment situation, which is brought to the attention of the School Director, or designee. If an 
employee disagrees with the established rules on conduct, policies, procedures, or practice; they can 
express this concern through the Problem Resolution Procedure outlined herein. No employee will be 
penalized, formally or informally, for voicing a grievance or complaint with Walden Academy in a 
reasonable, business-like manner, or for using these procedures.  

The School Director is the official representative between the staff and the Board of Directors. The 
School Director or designee must be accessible and ready to hear suggestions and grievances. 
Walden Academy cannot act on any problem unless it is aware of it, so grievances must be aired as 
soon as possible.  

Not every problem can be resolved to all parties’ satisfaction, and only through understanding and 
discussion of problems can employees and the administration develop confidence in each other. This 
confidence is important to the smooth, effective operation of Walden Academy. The School will strive 
to provide such an atmosphere at all times. Employees are encouraged to offer positive and 
constructive criticism, and to take the following steps if they believe that a condition of employment or 
a decision affecting them is unjust or inequitable.  

PROBLEM RESOLUTION PROCEDURE  

1. When a problem first arises, the aggrieved party should discuss the matter with a supervisor, 
rather than fellow employees. This discussion should take place in a timely fashion shortly 
after the incident occurs, three (3) working days. If the problem is not resolved at this level the 
grievance should be brought to the School Director or designee.  

2. The School Director or designee responsible for resolution of the grievance will review the 
issue and any relating policies. If the problem cannot be resolved informally through discussion 
or meeting, the grievance shall be reduced to writing by the aggrieved party and submitted to 
the School Director or designee within three (3) working days. The grievant should specify the 
problem to the fullest extent possible and any remedies sought.  

3. Following any necessary investigation, the School Director shall prepare a written response to 
the grievant no later than ten (10) working days from the date of receipt of the grievance. If 

84 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

32 
 

additional time is required for good cause, then the grievant will be notified of the delay and of 
the expected time of receipt of the written response.  

4. If no satisfactory solution can be reached, the grievant may request to meet with the Walden 
Academy Board of Directors’ Hearing Panel. This appointed panel will consist of a Board 
member, a parent representative and a member of the Walden Academy staff. The request for 
this meeting shall be in writing and must include any and all documentation related to the 
grievance, along with any solutions that have been proposed by either the grievant or the 
School Director or designee. The request for the meeting is to be delivered to the Walden 
Academy Board of Directors President by the School Director within seven (7) days before the 
next regularly scheduled meeting, so that the matter may be properly placed upon the agenda.  

5. The Walden Academy Board of Directors’ Hearing Panel and the School Director will set a 
date and time for the hearing of any evidence to be presented concerning the grievance. At the 
hearing, the grievant and a representative of Walden Academy shall have the opportunity to 
present evidence, both oral and documentary. Within three (3) working days from the date of 
the hearing, the Hearing Panel shall make a decision on the complaint in writing. This decision 
will serve as the final decision of Walden Academy.  

 

GRIEVANCES FROM PARENTS, STUDENTS OR COMMUNITY MEMBERS  

While parents and students are encouraged to take their concerns or grievances to staff persons 
most directly involved, they will, at times, feel too uncomfortable to do so. Often parents and students 
might feel more comfortable sharing their concerns with another staff person. In such cases the staff 
member receiving the complaint should take the following steps:  

 
1. Determine, if appropriate under the circumstances, whether the grievance may be resolved 

informally through discussion. Staff members receiving concerns initially should listen 
objectively, attentively and actively to the parent or student. The staff member may wish to ask 
supportive questions to help clarify the nature of the concern. Neither agreement nor 
disagreement with the grievance should be expressed, but rather those staff members 
receiving grievances should remain neutral.  

2. Once the grievant has been able to express his or her concern, if appropriate under the 
circumstances ask if the grievant would be willing to speak directly to the staff person. If the 
grievant does not desire this option, ask if he or she would like the assistance of the School 
Director or staff member’s supervisor to help voice the concern and explore possible solutions.  

3. If the grievant desires assistance, help the person schedule time with the School Director or 
supervisor.  

4. Alert the School Director, along with the appropriate supervisor and the other staff member of 
the concern and of your action with regard to seeking resolution.  

5. Follow up to make sure action was taken to resolve the problem. If the problem cannot be 
informally resolved direct the grievant to file a written grievance with the School Director or 
designee per the policy outlined in the Walden Academy Family Handbook. 

 
  

85 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

33 
 

APPENDIX A: CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECKS  
 
A commitment to the safety and well-being of our children is a core value of Walden Academy. No condition or 
activity will be permitted that may compromise that safety, and the well-being of students takes precedence 
over all other considerations. While we place great value on the contributions of staff, educators, and 
volunteers, there are conditions that are incompatible with unescorted access to children. Conditions deemed 
by the Board to preclude working at Walden Academy include conviction on charges of serious or violent 
misdemeanors or felonies, particularly those committed against minors or involving abuse or molestation. 
Walden Academy has therefore adopted a strict policy of prohibiting any individual with such a history from 
contact with Walden Academy students on school grounds or during field trips or other sanctioned school 
activities. The Board will adopt a specific list of offenses and offense categories deemed incompatible with 
work for or at school. To ensure the safety of the students, all individuals working or volunteering at Walden 
Academy will be required to submit to a background criminal investigation as follows:  
 

All employees of Walden Academy are required to, (1) disclose any conviction or arrest that is pending 
adjudication of the offenses charged, and (2) undergo fingerprint criminal background checks through the 
California Department of Justice (DOJ) and Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) before employment to ensure 
that they have no arrest or conviction for any serious or violent misdemeanor or felony.  

Employees  

 
Applicants are required to sign a release for Walden Academy to request the background check and to receive 
information from the DOJ on an ongoing basis during the term of their employment with Walden Academy. The 
School Director can conditionally hire an applicant pending completion of the background check, but shall 
notify the applicant that if he/she fails the criminal background check the offer of employment will be withdrawn. 
 
Employment is contingent upon clearance by the School Director. All employees will be subject to DOJ 
subsequent arrest notification during the term of their employment with Walden Academy. If Walden Academy 
receives subsequent notification of an arrest for any serious or violent misdemeanor or felony, the School 
Director will have discretion as to whether or not to suspend employment until the arrest is adjudicated. All 
records will be maintained in a strictly confidential manner in compliance with DOJ reporting requirements.  
 
  

86 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

34 
 

The DOJ carefully screens those individuals who are selected to receive and evaluate Criminal Offender 
Record Information (CORI) at Walden Academy. The individuals at Walden Academy who have been selected 
to receive and evaluate CORI data are:  

Fingerprint Background Check Evaluation Process  

. The School Director  

. The Board President 
 
Information received by Walden Academy from the Department of Justice (DOJ) will be handled in a strict 
confidential manner in accordance with DOJ requirements. There are severe penalties for any person who fails 
to handle records in accordance with DOJ requirements. (Penal Code Sections 11105 and 13300)  
Information received from the DOJ results in either a criminal record (CORI) or “No Record”. Individuals with no 
record will be cleared for employment.  
 
Applicant employees’ CORI records will be evaluated by the School Director. The School Director at his/her 
discretion may seek the counsel of the Walden Academy Board of Directors, in closed session, in evaluating a 
potential employee’s CORI for determining suitability for employment.  
 
Applicant volunteers’ CORI records will be evaluated by the School Director. The School Director at his/her 
discretion may seek the counsel of the Walden Academy Board of Directors, in closed session, in evaluating a 
potential volunteer’s suitability for volunteer service at Walden Academy.  
 
After CORI evaluation has taken place and either clearance or denial of application has been determined, all 
CORI records received from the DOJ will be destroyed.  
 
Applicants will receive confidential notification of the results of their background check.  
 
Those individuals failing their background check can make a one-time appeal to the School Director for 
reconsideration if he/she feels there has been an error in the review of their record. The decision of the School 
Director is final.  
 

All employees are subject to “Subsequent Arrest Notification Service” by the DOJ once they have been 
fingerprinted for Walden Academy. Any time an employee is arrested after their initial background clearance 
for the school, the DOJ will notify the School Director and send the school the new CORI information.  

Subsequent Arrest Notification Service  

 
The School Director will evaluate the CORI information and determine whether it justifies suspension or 
termination of the individual’s employment. At the discretion of the School Director, he/she can seek counsel 
from the Walden Academy Board of Directors, in closed session, in determining suitability for continued 
employment.  
 
After CORI evaluation has taken place and a decision has been made regarding the individual’s suitability to 
continue employment, the CORI records received from the DOJ will be destroyed. Applicants will receive 
confidential notification of their suspension or termination.  
 
Those individuals who are suspended or terminated can make a one-time appeal to the School Director for 
reconsideration if he/she feels there has been an error in the review of their record. The decision of the School 
Director is final.  
 

Upon termination of employment with Walden Academy, the School Director or his designee will file a “No 
Longer Interested Notification” form with the DOJ to inform the DOJ that Walden Academy is no longer 

Terminating Employment  

87 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

35 
 

interested in receiving criminal history information pertaining to the terminated individual. (Penal Code Section 
11105.2) 
  

88 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

36 
 

APPENDIX B: SEXUAL HARASSMENT  

SEXUAL HARRASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURE  

1. 
It is the Board’s intent that the Sexual Harassment Policy will be known and understood by all 
employees and students. This will be accomplished by:  

Communication of Policy  

a. Placing this policy in all Walden Academy policy Handbooks.  
b. Providing copies of this policy to all employees.  
c. Providing copies of this policy, with appropriate instruction, to the School Director and 
supervisors at Walden Academy.  
d. Providing notification of this policy to students and parents.  
e. Making information and materials available at all times through the School Director.  

 
This complaint procedure does not preempt the employee’s right to seek other civil remedies, including 
but not limited to injunctions, restraining orders, or other orders.  

 
1. 
 

Complaints and Resolutions – Employees or Other Adults  

. 

Employees or other individuals who feel aggrieved because of conduct they believe constitutes sexual 
harassment should directly inform the person engaging in such conduct that such conduct is offensive 
and must stop. If the matter is resolved at this level, the aggrieved individual is not required to proceed 
to Step Two. If the matter is not resolved or reoccurs, the aggrieved individual must proceed to Step 
Two.  

Step One – Informal Level  

 

 
Step Two – Formal Level  

Within five (5) working days of the alleged incident of sexual harassment, the complainant shall report 
the incident in writing, using the Sexual Harassment Complaint Form, to the School Director, or the 
offender’s immediate supervisor if the complainant is an employee. A Sexual Harassment Complaint 
Form may be obtained from the School Director, and a copy of this Form is attached to this Handbook. 
If the accused is the School Director, the complainant may proceed immediately to Step Four.  
Within ten (10) working days after presentation of the complaint, the School Director or immediate 
supervisor shall investigate the allegations and take appropriate corrective action. A written report, 
including findings related to the allegations, will be completed.  

 

. 
 

Step Three – The School Director  

If the complaint is not resolved at Step Two above, it shall be stated in writing within five (5) working 
days of the decision rendered at Step Two, signed by the complainant, and submitted to the School 
Director as part of this procedure.  
The complaint shall minimally provide the following information:  

• The name of the individual involved;  

• Clearly state the facts causing the complaint;  

• Indicate the specific remedy being sought.  
 

Within ten (10) working days after receiving the written complaint, the School Director shall investigate, 
give a written response to the complainant, and take appropriate action including disciplinary measures.  

89 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

37 
 

.  

.  

. Step Four – Walden Academy Board of Directors 
 

(Closed Session)  

If the complaint is not resolved in Step Three, the complainant may within five (5) working days of 
receipt of the School Director’s written response, appeal to Walden Academy Board of Directors by 
filing the complaint and the School Director’s response, along with any written response of the 
complainant to the response of the School Director, with Walden Academy Board.  
 
Walden Academy Board shall hear the complaint within ten (10) working days after receipt of any 
written complaint properly filed with Walden Academy Board and shall render a decision in writing 
within ten (10) working days after such hearing.  
 
Both the complainant and the accused shall be afforded a full and fair opportunity to present evidence 
relevant to the facts and to the issues raised by the complainant and may be represented by counsel at 
the hearing of a complaint by Walden Academy Board.  
 
The complainant shall be furnished a copy of the decision of Walden Academy Board.  
 
The decision of Walden Academy Board shall be final.  

Walden Academy, as your employer, must take all reasonable steps to prevent discrimination and unlawful 
harassment from occurring. Sexual or other unlawful harassment in employment violates Walden Academy’s 
policy and prohibited under Title VII of the Civil Rights Act and the California Fair Employment and Housing 
Act. Your signature on the “Acknowledgement of Receipt of Employee Handbook” page of the Handbook will 
signify your receipt and review of the Sexual Harassment policy. Should you have any questions, concerns or 
suggestions on reporting procedures, please contact your supervisor immediately.  

Investigations and No Retaliation  

It is unlawful to retaliate or take reprisals in any way against an employee who has articulated a good faith 
concern about sexual harassment or discrimination against him or her or against another individual. 
Complainants and witnesses under this policy will be protected from further harassment and will not be 
retaliated against in any aspect of their employment due to their participation in the filing of a complaint, acting 
as a witness, or the reporting of sexual harassment.  

 
All complaints of sexual harassment will be kept confidential and only those persons with a need to know of 
information or the identity of a complainant will receive such information. Individuals participating in a sexual 
harassment investigation will be advised that the matter is confidential and that retaliation in any form is 
prohibited.  
  

90 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

38 
 

 

 
HARASSMENT COMPLAINT FORM 

It is the policy of the School that all of its employees be free from harassment. This form is provided 
for you to report what you believe to be harassment, so that the School may investigate and take 
appropriate disciplinary or other action when the facts show that there has been harassment. 
 
If you are an employee of the School, you may file this form with the School Director or Board 
President. 
 
Please review the School’s policies concerning harassment for a definition of harassment and a 
description of the types of conduct that are considered to be harassment. 
 
The School will undertake every effort to handle the investigation of your complaint in a confidential 
manner. In that regard, the School will disclose the contents of your complaint only to those persons 
having a need to know. For example, to conduct its investigation, the School will need to disclose 
portions of your factual allegations to potential witnesses, including anyone you have identified as 
having knowledge of the facts on which you are basing your complaint, as well as the alleged 
harasser. 
 
In signing this form below, you authorize the School to disclose to others the information you have 
provided herein, and information you may provide in the future. Please note that the more detailed 
information you provide, the more likely it is that the School will be able to address your complaint to 
your satisfaction. 
 
Charges of harassment are taken very seriously by the School both because of the harm caused to 
the person harassed, and because of the potential sanctions that may be taken against the harasser. 
It is therefore very important that you report the facts as accurately and completely as possible and 
that you cooperate fully with the person or persons designated to investigate your complaint. 
 
Your Name: ____________________________ Date: _____________________ 
 
Date of Alleged Incident(s): _______________________________________________ 
 
Name of Person(s) you believe sexually harassed you or someone else:____________ 

______________________________________________________________________ 

List any witnesses that were present: ________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________ 

Where did the incident(s) occur? ___________________________________________ 
 
 
 
  

91 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

39 
 

Please describe the events or conduct that are the basis of your complaint by providing as much 
factual detail as possible (i.e. specific statements; what, if any, physical contact was involved; any 
verbal statements; what did you do to avoid the situation, etc.) (Attach additional pages, if needed): 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
I acknowledge that I have read and that I understand the above statements. I hereby authorize the 
School to disclose the information I have provided as it finds necessary in pursuing its investigation. I 
hereby certify that the information I have provided in this complaint is true and correct and complete 
to the best of my knowledge and belief. 
 
____________________________________________  Date: ___________________ 
Signature of Complainant 
 
____________________________________________ 
Print Name 
 
 
Received by: _________________________________  Date: ___________________  

  

92 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

40 
 

APPENDIX C: 
 

COMPLAINT FORM 

 

Your Name: ___________________________________  Date: ___________________  
 
Date of Alleged Incident(s):________________________________________________________________ 
 
Name of Person(s) you have a complaint against:____________________________________ 
 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
List any witnesses that were present: _____________________________________________ 
 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Where did the incident(s) occur? 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Please describe the events or conduct that are the basis of your complaint by providing as much factual detail 
as possible (i.e. specific statements; what, if any, physical contact was involved; any verbal statements; what 
did you do to avoid the situation, etc.) (Attach additional pages, if needed):  
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
I hereby authorize the School to disclose the information I have provided as it finds necessary in pursuing its 
investigation. I hereby certify that the information I have provided in this complaint is true and correct and 
complete to the best of my knowledge and belief. I further understand providing false information in this regard 
could result in disciplinary action up to and including termination. 

____________________________________________  Date: ___________________ 
Signature of Complainant 
 
____________________________________________ 
Print Name 
 
 
Received by: _________________________________  Date: ___________________  
 
  

93 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy Employee Handbook 
 

41 
 

 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF WALDEN ACADEMY  
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 

 
PLEASE READ THE EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK AND SUBMIT A SIGNED COPY OF THIS 
STATEMENT TO THE SCHOOL DIRECTOR. 
 
EMPLOYEE NAME: _____________________________________ 
 
I ACKNOWLEDGE that I have received a copy of the Employee Handbook. I have read and 
understood the contents of the Handbook, and I agree to abide by its directions and procedures. I 
have been given the opportunity to ask any questions I might have about the policies in the 
Handbook. I understand that it is my responsibility to read and familiarize myself with the policies and 
procedures contained in the Handbook. 
 
I understand that the statements contained in the Handbook are guidelines for employees concerning 
some of the School’s policies and benefits, and are not intended to create any contractual or other 
legal obligations or to alter the at-will nature of my employment with the School. In the event I do have 
an employment contract which expressly alters the at-will relationship, I agree to the foregoing except 
with reference to an at-will employment status. 
 
I understand that except for employment at-will status, any and all policies or practices can be 
changed at any time by the School. 
 
I understand that other than the Board of the School, no person has authority to enter into any 
agreement, express or implied, for employment for any specific period of time, or to make any 
agreement for employment other than at-will; only the Board has the authority to make any such 
agreement and then only in writing signed by the Board President. 
 
 
____________________________________________  Date: ___________________ 
Employee’s Signature 
 

 
 
Please sign/date, tear out, and return to the School. 
 

94 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Board Action Item   
September 10, 2013 

 
AGENDA ITEM:
 

   Deferment of TB Test Requirement for Parent Volunteers 

PARTIES INVOLVED:
 

  Parent Volunteers, Teaching/Administrative Staff and Students 

Currently there is a nationwide shortage of the tuberculin skin test antigen.   The Local Health 
Department is no longer able to provide the test and local health agencies, such as the hospital, 
are either out of the antigen or are rationing their supply for non-routine screenings.  Some 
medical providers may have a few left however the cost is very expensive and these providers 
may be in another town.     

ISSUES INVOLVED/FISCAL IMPLICATIONS (IF ANY): 

 

Parent volunteers who are unable to provide proof of a clear TB test are unable to volunteer in 
their child’s classroom or chaperone on field trips.  This has a negative impact on the school’s 
vision and mission as parent volunteerism is an important element for successful 
implementation of these at Walden.  We want to be able to provide a vibrant education that 
extends beyond the classroom to all willows students and their parents.   

IMPACT ON SCHOOL MISSION, VISION OR GOALS, (IF ANY): 

 

1.  Continue to require clear TB skin test results. 
OPTIONS OR SOLUTIONS: 

a. This may cause cancellation of already scheduled field trips and limit classroom help 
for teachers.  

2. As recommended by the Center for Disease Control, see attachment, we could defer this 
requirement until the shortage ends which they anticipate to end by the end of October.   
a.  Per the Glenn County Health Department, Director of Health Services, we have one 

active case of TB in Glenn County.  They are currently being treated, live in another 
town in the county, and are homebound.  She considered them to not be a risk at 
this time.     

b. In addition to the deferment we could require parents who are unable to meet the 
TB requirement to complete a brief health questionnaire to serve as a minimal TB 
screening, see attachment.    

 

It is my recommendation that the Board defers the clear TB skin test requirement until the 
shortage is over and asks that the parents who are unable to comply to complete a brief health 
questionnaire.   

RECOMMENDATION: 

 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted:  Zuheit Whitney, RN, MSN 

95 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Sample TB Health Questionnaire 
 

Due to the recurrent nationwide shortage of the tuberculin skin test antigen and as 
recommended by the CDC and Glenn County Health Department Walden Academy has agreed 
to defer the clear TB skin test requirement for parent volunteerism however we are requiring 
that parents unable to obtain the screening to complete this brief questionnaire and return it to 
the school’s office.   
 
Please indicate yes or no to the following questions: 
 

1.  Have you had a bad cough that lasts 3 weeks or longer?   □ Yes □ No 
2. Pain in the chest within the last month?     □ Yes □ No 
3. Coughing up of blood or sputum (phlegm from deep inside the lungs)? □ Yes □ No 
4. Recently had:  

• Weakness or fatigue       □ Yes □ No 
• Weight loss        □ Yes □ No 
• No appetite        □ Yes □ No 
• Chills         □ Yes □ No 
• Fever         □ Yes □ No 
• Sweating at night       □ Yes □ No 
• Traveled outside the United States     □ Yes □ No 

 
 
 
 
 
Signed:____________________________________________________  Date:_______________ 
 
Printed Name_______________________________________________ 
 
 
Thank you for your cooperation.  Once your answers are reviewed by the school nurse you will 
be notified by the school’s office as to when you may begin to volunteer for Walden Academy. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 

 

 
 

96 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



This is an official 

CDC HEALTH UPDATE 

 

Distributed via the CDC Health Alert Network  
September 04, 2013, 13:00 ET (1:00 PM ET)  
CDCHAN-00355 
 

Recurrent Nationwide Shortage of Tuberculin Skin Test Antigen 
Solutions: CDC Recommendations for Patient Care and Public Health 

Practice 
 
 

Summary: In HAN 345 (http://emergency.cdc.gov/HAN/han00345.asp), April 2013, CDC reported that 
TUBERSOL®, a product of Sanofi Pasteur Limited, was in shortage nationwide. Although supplies were 
restored in early June 2013, TUBERSOL® is in shortage again until at least the middle of October 2013. 
At the current time, the 5 tuberculin units/0.1 mL, 5 mL (50 tests), multiple dose vials are unavailable. The 
5 tuberculin units/0.1 mL, 1 mL (10 tests), multiple dose vials are in limited supply. This notice updates 
and supersedes the advice in HAN 345 and advises public health officials, clinicians, and workers 
in occupational health and infection control about how to adapt testing protocols to the recurrent 
shortage. 

TUBERSOL® is one of two purified-protein derivative (PPD) tuberculin antigen solutions that are licensed 
by the United States Food and Drug Administration (FDA). JHP Pharmaceuticals, LLC, manufactures 
APLISOL®, the other PPD tuberculin product that is licensed by FDA. JHP Pharmaceuticals, LLC, has 
notified FDA that APLISOL® is on allocation, meaning that historical customers have precedence for 
buying the product, and APLISOL® is available in restricted quantity. Regional shortages of APLISOL® 
have been reported since healthcare providers switched from TUBERSOL® to APLISOL®. 

Background 

Two kinds of immunological methods are used for detecting Mycobacterium tuberculosis infection: 

tuberculin skin tests (TSTs) and interferon-γ release assay (IGRA) blood tests. The indications for using 

these tests are the same for both methods, although one or the other method is preferred for certain 
populations (1).  When setting testing priorities because of the current shortage of antigen, these 
preferences may be considered as factors when one of the methods is unavailable. Together, these tests 
are the only means for detecting latent M. tuberculosis infection, and they contribute to diagnosing 
tuberculosis (TB) disease. When findings such as chest radiography and mycobacterial cultures are 
sufficient for confirming or excluding the TB diagnosis, the results from a TST or an IGRA blood test might 
be unnecessary (2). Nevertheless, most TB cases in the United States are diagnosed with a set of 
findings including results from one of these tests. When TB disease is strongly suspected, specific 
treatment should be started regardless of results from TST or an IGRA blood test (1,3). 

In cross-sectional controlled studies, TUBERSOL® and APLISOL® give similar results for most patients. 
The agreement between results from a TST and an IGRA blood test or between results from the two 
commercial IGRA blood tests is lower (1). 

Recommendations 

CDC recommends any of three general approaches for addressing the shortages of tuberculin skin test 
antigens: 

97 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13

http://emergency.cdc.gov/HAN/han00345.asp


1. Substitute IGRA blood tests for TSTs. The cost associated with using the blood tests can be greater 
than the cost of TST because the per-unit cost of the IGRA test materials is greater than for those of TST 
and, unlike TST, IGRAs entail services external to the point of care in some settings. The blood tests 
require phlebotomy, preparation of blood specimens, and specific laboratory services for analysis; 
therefore, these tests are not available in all practice settings. Clinicians who use the IGRA blood tests 
should be aware that the criteria for test interpretation are different from the criteria for interpreting TSTs 
(1). IGRAs do not utilize the risk-stratified cut-off measurements that are used for TST. Both IGRA 
products that are licensed in the United States can give indeterminate results, and one of these can also 
give borderline results (results between positive and negative). TST does not yield indeterminate or 
borderline results (1). 

2. Substitute APLISOL® for TUBERSOL® for skin testing if APLISOL® is available. In studies, the two 
products give similar results for most patients. The fixed availability of APLISOL® has created a relative 
shortage because of increased demand at sites where TUBERSOL® is unavailable, thus limiting the 
feasibility of this approach.  

3. Allocate TSTs to priority usages, such as TB contact investigations, as determined by public health 
authorities. Priorities can be set in accordance to relative TB risks (4) and local TB epidemiology. A 
priority strategy might require deferment of testing some persons, and it might require modification of 
public health rules, regulations, or policies. CDC does not recommend testing persons who are not at risk 
for TB (4). 

Some surveillance programs for TB infection control rely on routine serial TSTs. Switching products or 
methods might make serial changes in test results difficult to interpret. The apparent conversions of 
results from negative to positive or reversions from positive to negative could be caused by inherent inter-
product or inter-method discordance (1,5). In settings with a low likelihood of TB exposure, the deferment 
of routine serial testing should be considered in consultation with public health and occupational health 
authorities. 

Updates about the shortages of tuberculin skin test solutions are posted by the FDA Center for Biologics 
Evaluation and Research at 
http://www.fda.gov/BiologicsBloodVaccines/SafetyAvailability/Shortages/ucm351921.htm. 

References 

1. CDC. Updated guidelines for using interferon gamma release assays to detect Mycobacterium 
tuberculosis infection — United States, 2010. MMWR 2010;59 (RR-5). 
http://www.cdc.gov/mmwr/PDF/rr/rr5905.pdf. 

2. American Thoracic Society. Diagnostic standards and classification of tuberculosis in adults and 
children. Am J Respir Crit Care Med 2000;161:1376–95. 
http://www.cdc.gov/tb/publications/PDF/1376.pdf. 

3. CDC. Treatment of tuberculosis. MMWR 2003;52(RR-11). http://www.cdc.gov/mmwr/PDF/rr/rr5211.pdf. 

4. CDC. Targeted tuberculin testing and treatment of latent tuberculosis infection. MMWR 2000;49(RR-6). 
http://www.cdc.gov/mmwr/PDF/rr/rr4906.pdf. 

5. CDC. Guidelines for preventing the transmission ofMycobacterium tuberculosis in health-care settings, 
2005. MMWR 2005;54(RR-17) http://www.cdc.gov/mmwr/pdf/rr/rr5417.pdf. 

 

98 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13

http://www.fda.gov/BiologicsBloodVaccines/SafetyAvailability/Shortages/ucm351921.htm
http://www.cdc.gov/mmwr/PDF/rr/rr5905.pdf
http://www.cdc.gov/tb/publications/PDF/1376.pdf
http://www.cdc.gov/mmwr/PDF/rr/rr5211.pdf
http://www.cdc.gov/mmwr/PDF/rr/rr4906.pdf
http://www.cdc.gov/mmwr/pdf/rr/rr5417.pdf


The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) protects people's health and safety by preventing and 

controlling diseases and injuries; enhances health decisions by providing credible information on critical health 

issues; and promotes healthy living through strong partnerships with local, national, and international 

organizations. 

 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Categories of Health Alert Network messages:  
Health Alert  Requires immediate action or attention; highest level of importance 
Health Advisory May not require immediate action; provides important information for a specific incident or situation 
Health Update   Unlikely to require immediate action; provides updated information regarding an incident or situation 
HAN Info Service Does not require immediate action; provides general public health information 

  
##This message was distributed to state and local health officers, state and local epidemiologists, state 

and local laboratory directors, public information officers, epidemiologists, HAN coordinators, and clinician 

organizations## 

 

99 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden
Entitlement 29,000     

Certificated Salaries 3,320       
Textbooks & Curriculum Materials 10,650     
Computers/Technology 9,530       
Professional Development 5,500       

Total Expenses 29,000     

Common Core Budget

100 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



101 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



102 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



103 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



104 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



September 4, 2013 

The Honorable Donald Cole Byrd 
Superior Court, County of Glenn 
526 West Sycamore Street 
Willows, CA 95988 

RE: 2012-2013 Grand Jury Report 

Dear Judge Byrd: 

The Glenn County Grand Jury Report for 2012-2013 requires a response from Walden Academy 

regarding three recommendations the Grand Jury made concerning Walden Academy. The 

recommendations on the Grand Jury address school safety, facility, and communication issues. 

Recommendation One: 

“Ensure that any facilities used by Walden Academy meet or exceed all applicable current building code 

standards.”  

Currently, Walden Academy leases space from St. Monica’s Catholic Church, the Glenn County of 

Education, and a classroom and office space located at 408 Pacific Avenue. Each of these spaces has 

been deemed safe for classroom use by the City of Willows building inspectors. Thus, our current 

facilities meet or exceed all applicable current building code standards. 

Walden Academy is growing and looking for facilities to house our school in the future. These facilities 

will be subject to applicable planning and building codes. Thus, any future home will meet or exceed all 

applicable current building code standards.  

Recommendation Two: 

“Make efforts to maximize the ability to communicate between all rooms of the present facility, and 

make absolutely certain the current problem does not exist in any subsequent site for Walden 

Academy.” 

Each Walden Academy classroom has a dedicated phone line for communication. To improve the speed 

of communication during emergencies, we have implanted an auto-dialer system to alert staff and 

parents. As Walden Academy looks for a new site, we are planning to improve phone and Internet 

capability to improve school safety and meet requirements for Common Core assessment.  

Recommendation Three: 

“Maximize communication between Walden Academy and local emergency services. Establish and 

formalize emergency procedures between Walden and the appropriate agencies, such as local police 

and fire services.” 

105 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



Walden Academy has collaborated with the local police department to create a safe school traffic plan. 

We have also shared our evacuation plans with the local fire department. Last year, Walden participated 

in the Fire Safety program provided to elementary students by the Willows Fire Department and the 

Kiwanis Club’s bicycle safety program. 

In addition, Walden Academy is participating in the county-wide effort to implement START (School 

Threat Assessment Response Team).  This program aims to create a consistent protocol for preventing 

school violence throughout Glenn County schools.  

Student safety is the number one priority at Walden Academy. To keep our students safe, our staff has 

participated in CPR and first aid training. We have also participated in professional development 

provided by Mental Health and Responsive Classroom to nurture our students socially and emotionally, 

as well as academically.  

Respectfully submitted: 

 

 

__________________________________________________ 

Mele Benz, School Director, Walden Academy 

 

 

__________________________________________________ 

Kelly Lawler, Board Chairwoman, Walden Academy 

 

 

 

 

106 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



107 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



108 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



109 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



110 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



111 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



112 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



113 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



114 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



115 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



116 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



117 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



118 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



119 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



120 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



121 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



122 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



123 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



124 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



125 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



126 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



127 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



128 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



129 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



130 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



131 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



132 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



133 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



134 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



135 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



136 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



137 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13



138 Walden Academy Board Packet 9.8.13


	Walden - Aug Check Reg - 090613.pdf
	August 2013

	Walden -  Sept Board Presentation - JB - 090513.pdf
	Walden Academy
	Agenda
	Current Revenue Forecast: Aug. YTD Update
	Current Expense Forecast: Aug. YTD Update
	2013 – 14 Current Forecast: Aug. YTD Update
	2013 – 14 YTD Actuals
	2013 – 14 YTD Actuals
	Cash Flow Forecast
	exhibits

	11101160124909.pdf
	Certification
	Alternative Form

	ADP5020.tmp
	WELCOME TO WALDEN ACADEMY
	UEmployee Eligibility Criteria


	Walden - Common Core Budget - jb - 090613.pdf
	Sheet1




